Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited

CIN : U40102DI.2006P1.C156738

SHORTER NOTICE

A Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
members of Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited (CPTC) will be held
on Friday, December 19, 2025 at 04.20 pm on a shorter notice through Video
Conferencing ("VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
I. Adoption of Audited Accounts

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, Statement of Profit & Loss,
Cash Flow Statement and notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year
ended on March 31, 2025 together with the Board's Report, the Auditors’ Report
thereon and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as on March
31, 2025 as per IND AS, profit and loss account & Cash Flow Statement as on that
date including schedules/annexures, notes thereon along with Board's Report,
Auditors’ Report be and are hereby received and adopted by the shareholders of the
Company.”

Il. Appointment of Director in the place of retiring Director

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sushil Sharma (DIN: 08776440), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The following resolution
is recommended with or without modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act,
2013, and rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification and re-
enactment thereof) and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act,
2013, Shri Sushil Sharma (DIN: 08776440), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re- appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

lll. Appointment of Director in the place of retiring Director

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha (DIN: 09113781),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. The
following resolution is recommended with or without modification(s) as an Ordinary
Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013

and rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification and re-enactment
thereof) and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 Shri
Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha (DIN: 09113781), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re- appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”
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IV. Declaration of Final Dividend

To declare the final dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25 @ 25 % recommended
by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2025.

In this connection, to consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
following as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT the final dividend at the rate of 25% of paid up share capital out
of the profits of the Company and is hereby declared for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2025 and the same be paid to the shareholders as on the date of AGM as
recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company on August 29, 2025.”

V. Remuneration of the Statutory Auditors

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the
Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2025-26, the following resolution is
recommended to pass with or without modification(s).

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies Act,
2013 the Board of Directors of the Company are hereby authorized to fix remuneration
of the Statutory Auditors of the Company which are appointed as per the
recommendation of Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the financial year
2025-26.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director, Chief Finance Officer and/ or Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be required or considered necessary or incidental thereto.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

VI. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following

VIL.

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for Regularization of Additional Director, Shri
Naveen Srivastava (DIN-10158134):

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Naveen Srivastava (DIN-10158134), who was appointed as
an Additional Director with effect from August 20, 2025 on the Board of the Company
in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions
and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for Regularization of Additional Director, Shri
Ajay Kumar Sharma (DIN-01964014):

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Ajay Kumar Sharma (DIN-01964014), who was appointed
as an Additional Director with effect from February 10, 2025 on the Board of the
Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”



VIII. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for Regularization of Additional Director, Shri
Sanjay Kumar Gupta (DIN-10628011):

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta (DIN-10628011), who was appointed
as an Additional Director with effect from January 09, 2025 on the Board of the
Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

IX. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution for approval of Altered Articles of Association of
the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s), change or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) the consent of shareholders of the company be and is hereby
accorded and Articles of Association are hereby amended by inserting sub clause
2B after sub clause 2A in Clause lll of the existing Articles of Association of the
Company as the following;

“Further, after exit of IL&FS Energy Development Company Limited from the
Company, an Amendment Agreement to Shareholders’ Agreement dated 01st
July 2025 is executed between the Companies, Powergrid Corporation of India
Limited, SJVN Limited and Nepal Electricity Authority, shall be read as part of
the Articles of Association of the Company and in case of any conflict or
inconsistency between the provisions of Article 4 of Shareholders” Agreement
and the provisions of the Articles, the provisions of Articles 4 Shareholders’
Agreement shall prevail.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Whole Time Director or CFO or Company Secretary
of the Company be and are hereby authorized severally to file necessary e-forms
with the Registrar of Companies in applicable e-Forms and to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution and to take all
such steps for giving any such direction as may be necessary or desirable and to
settle any questions or difficulties whatsoever that may arise for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.” ‘

X. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution for approving appointment and remuneration to Sh. Mahesh Chandra
Tewari (DIN- 10671935) as Whole Time Director:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with approval of the Board of Directors and

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) read with Schedule V to the Act, and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Act and the rules made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the Articles of Association of the
Companry and amendment to Shareholders Agreement of the Company, consent of
the shareholders be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Sh. Mahesh
Chandra Tewari (DIN- 10671935) as a Whole-Time Director designated as Executive
Director of the Company with effect from November 28, 2025 on the terms and
conditions including remuneration as per deputation terms and conditions of



POWERGRID, subject to the same not exceeding the limits specified under Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors, CFO or Company Secretary of the
Company be and is hereby severally authorised to file necessary forms with the
Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, things and deeds as may be required
to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited

For Cross Border Power Transrision Co. Ltd.
r v

Wya Sorayan
ompany &G Seretary
Registered Office:

3" Floor, Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg,

Opp Army Research & Referral Hospital,
New Delhi, 110057

Date: December 19, 2025



NOTES:

. In view of the prevailing situation of Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(“MCA") has vide its circular dated 5th May, 2020 read with circulars dated 8th April,
2020 and 13th April, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted holding
of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC /
OAVM. The deemed venue for the 33™ AGM shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

. Since, this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM,
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip have not been sent through this Notice.

. Corporate Members authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting
are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its Representative to attend the AGM through
VC.

. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

. The AGM is being conducted through Microsoft Teams. Kindly make it convenient to
attend the meeting through Video Conferencing.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

The following Explanatory Statement set out the material facts with respect to the
Notice as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No (VI):

Shri Naveen Srivastava (DIN-10158134) was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company with effect from August 29, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of Section
161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office
only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. In this
regard, The Board is of the view that the appointment of Shri Naveen Srivastava (DIN-
10158134) on the Company’s Board as Director is desirable and would be beneficial to
the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolution No. (VI) for the approval
by the members of the Company.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except
Shri Naveen Srivastava himself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said
resolution. The Board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary
resolution.

Iltem No (VII):

Shri Ajay Kumar Sharma (DIN-01964014), was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company with effect from February 10, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director
holds office only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.
In this regard, The Board is of the view that the appointment of Shri Ajay Kumar Sharma
(DIN-01964014), on the Company’s Board as Director is desirable and would be
beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolution No. (VII) for
the approval by the members of the Company.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except
Shri Ajay Kumar Sharma himself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said
resolution. The Board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary
resolution.

[tem No (VIII):

Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta (DIN-10628011), was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company with effect from January 09, 2025, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Association of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director
holds office only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.
In this regard, The Board is of the view that the appointment of Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta
(DIN-10628011) on the Company’s Board as Director is desirable and would be
beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolution No. (VIII) for
the approval by the members of the Company.



None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except
Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta himself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said -
resolution. The Board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary
resolution.

ltem No (1X):
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 19, 2025

recommended that the existing Article of Association be altered with the text as set out in
the resolution. Consent of the Shareholders by way of Special Resolution is required for
such alteration of Articles of Association in terms of the provisions of Section 14 of the
Act.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives,
is interested in this Special Resolution.

The Board recommends this Special Resolution for your approval.

Item No (X):

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company, the Board of Directors of
the Company had, vide resolutions passed on November 19, 2025, approved
appointment of Sh. Mahesh Chandra Tewari as Whole time Director of the Company,
designated as Executive Director. In accordance with Section 196 of the Companies Act,
2013, the appointment of whole-time director requires the approval of the members of the
Company and accordingly, the board of directors is seeking your approval for the
aforementioned appointment of whole-time director. The Board of Directors recommends
the said Resolution No. (X) for approval of the Members.

The proposed remuneration and terms and conditions of appointment of Sh. Mahesh
Chandra Tewari shall be as per deputation terms and conditions of POWERGIRD and
within the limits specified under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives, except
Sh. Mahesh Chandra Tewari himself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said
resolution. The Board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary
resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited

For Cross Border Power Transmission Co. Ltd.

¢ ‘
,Q«O'\g’w) Divya Sorayan
. mpany Secretary
Company Secretary
Regqistered Office:
3 Floor, Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg,

Opp Army Research & Referral Hospital,
New Delhi, 110057

Date: December 19, 2025

CCTO:
1. ALL THE DIRECTORS,
2. ALL THE SHAREHOLDERS,
3. THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.




1.

Directors seeking re-election at the 19" Annual General Meeting:

Name

"Shri Sushil Sharma

DIN

08776440

Date of Birth and Age

August 03, 1966/ 59 years

Date of Appointment

September 07, 2020

Qualification

B.E. (Mechanical)

Expertise in specific
functional Area

Sh. Sharma has more than 30 years of rich and varied
experience in various organizations including SJVN. He
started his career in H.P. State Technical Education Service
in 1990. He joined SJVN in January, 1994 as Astt. Engineer
and worked in various Departments / Projects and rose to
the level of General Manager (Mechanical).

In SJVN, he was involved in the Design / Construction of
1500 MW Nathpa Jhakri Project and 412 MW Rampur HPS.
He has a vast experience in Design, Erection and
Maintenance of Hydro Power Plants. Initially he worked in
the Design office of SJVN for about 19 years for Planning
and Design of Hydro-Mechanical components of various
projects. Later on he was involved in the successful
Erection & Commissioning of 412 MW Rampur HPS. After
Commissioning, he looked after the Maintenance of
Electrical and Mechanical equipment of 412 MW Rampur
Project. Subsequently, he was In-charge of Mechanical
Maintenance of 1500 MW Nathpa Jhakri Project.

Directorship held in
other Companies

1. SJVN Thermal Private Limited

Name

Shri Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

DIN

09113781

Date of Birth and Age

October 10, 1971/ 54 years

Date of Appointment

March 19, 2021

Qualification

M.Tech (Electrical, Electronics & Communication)

Expertise in specific
functional Area

He has served for more than 28 years of Power Sector in
Nepal. He is Deputy Managing Director (DMC) in Nepal
Electricity Authority, Nepal (NEA). Prior to this, he is
having experience in Preventive and Breakdown
maintenance of distribution line and sub-station up to 133
kV level and engaged in tender evaluation works for the
procurement of transformers, switchgears protection
systems and energy meters, supervision and monitoring of
construction works up to 400 kV transmission line and sub-
stations. He has graduated in Electrical Engineering from
REC Rourkela, Sambalpur University, Orissa.

Directorship held in
other Companies

1. Butwal-Gorakhpur Cross Border Power
Transmission limited




2. Directors being appointed at the 19" Annual General Meeting:

Name

Shri Naveen Srivastava

DIN

10158134

Date of Birth and Age

November 23, 1966/59 years

Date of Appointment

August 29, 2025

Qualification

B.Tech. (Hons.) degree in Electrical Engineering

Expertise in specific
functional Area

Shri Naveen Srivastava has completed the Harvard

- Manage Mentor program (Management) from Harvard

Business School, along with various management
certificate courses from ISB Hyderabad, MDI Gurgaon,
and XLRI Jamshedpur. With a distinguished career
spanning 35 years in the power sector, he has worked
in diverse capacities in EHV substations and
transmission  lines, covering Operations &
Maintenance, Construction, Commercial, Engineering,
Planning & Monitoring, among others. He served as
Executive Director of NR-3, NER, and NERPSIP
Projects. He spearheaded the installation and
commissioning of the RTU and SCADA system in the
Goa grid and established the State Load Dispatch
Centre (SLDC) at Panjim, Goa. He was instrumental in
the execution of prestigious projects such as the North
Eastern Region Power System Improvement Project
(NERPSIP), underground cabling in Kashi, the first
765kV pooling substation at Bilaspur, and several
765kV, 400kV & 220kV transmission lines, as well as
AlS and GIS substations. He played a pivotal role in
the adoption of new technologies, including the remote
control of the HVDC Rihand-Dadri Link and HVDC
Vindhyachal BTB Link, the first STATCOM (+/-300
MVAR) in Uttar Pradesh for dynamic stability, and the
establishment of centralized monitoring of the
communication system of the Regional Load Dispatch
Centres under UNMS. He has also published technical
papers in international conferences such as CIGRE.
His exceptional contributions have been widely
recognized: he was honored with the prestigious
“Sustainability Leader of the Year Award 2024" by the
Global Energy & Environment Foundation and
conferred with the Exemplary Service Award 2025 in
recognition of his distinguished contributions and
exemplary commitment to the power transmission
industry. Presently, he serves as Director (Operations)
of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited and
Chairman of nine TBCB SPVs.

Directorship held in
other Companies
(Part-time) along with
listed .entities from
which helshe
resigned in the past
three years

. Butwal-gorakhpur cross border power transmission limited
. Powergrid Kurnool-Ill Cpeta transmission limited

. Powergrid Sirohi Khandwa transmission limited

. National High Power Test Laboratory Private limited

. Sikkim Power Transmission limited

. Central Transmission Utility of India limited
. Powergrid Vataman Transmission Limited

. Power Grid Corporation of India limited

0. Powergrid Unchahar Transmission limited

]
2
3
4
3
6. Powergrid Sikar Khetri Transmission limited
)
8
9
1




Date of Appointment
Qualification

Expertise in specific
functional Area

Directorship held in
other Companies
(Part-time) along with
listed entities from
which helshe
resigned in the past
three years

“Name | ShiiAjay Kumar Shamme |

Date of Birth and Age

April 08, 1974/51 years N
February 10, 2025

01964014

B.Tech in Mechanical Engineering, MBA in Human
Resource Management and Executive Development
Program Certification in HRM
Sh. Sharma joined SJVNin October 2009 as Manager,
Manpower Planning and has since been a pivotal
figure in HR Department at Corporate Headquarters in
Shimla.

Prior to SJVN, Sh. Sharma served at Steel Authority of
India Limited (SAIL) as Head of Mechanical
Maintenance of BPP at Bokaro Steel Plant from 1996
to 2009.

In SJVN his contribution spans across various fields of
HR i.e. Manpower Planning, Administration, Industrial
Relations & Welfare, HR Policy, Training & Human
Resource Development and HR Procurement. In
addition to this, he has assisted Director (Personnel)
and Chairman & Managing Director of SJVN,
underscoring his importance in company's leadership
team.

His achievements include leading several strategic HR
initiatives  that significantly improved employee
engagement and productivity, developing and
implementing HR policies aligned with the company’s
strategic objectives, designing and execution of
comprehensive training programs that enhanced the
skills and competencies of the workforce and
integration  of technology  with HR processes,
streamlining HR processes and improving efficiency
contributing to overall organizational growth.

With a career spanning almost three decades, he
brings a wealth of experience and expertise in human
resources and industrial operations.
SJVN Thermal Private limited
SGEL Assam Renewable Energy limited
sJVN Green Energy limited

SJVN Limited
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Name

Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta

DIN

10628011

Date of Birth and Age

September 06, 1970/55 years

Date of Appointment

January 09, 2025

Qualification

Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering (Honours),
an M.Tech from IIT Delhi and a PGDBM from MDI
Gurgaon in collaboration with ESCP-EAP, Paris.

Expertise in specific
functional Area

Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta presently serving as Chief
Operating Officer, (IB, BDD&JV) in Power Grid
Corporation of India Limited. He has over 33 years
working experience in Power Sector at various key
positions experience of planning and coordinated
development of National Grid. He was responsible for
_execution of multi large valued projects funded by The
World Bank, Asian Development Bank, German
Development Bank (KfW), Japan International
Cooperation Agency (JICA) etc. He has represented
India eight times in the Global Management Challenge
and Asian Management Games, winning the latter in
2017. A certified Energy Manager and Auditor, he has
completed an internationally recognized Project
Management program. Passionate about continuous
learning, Sanjay has travelled extensively across
U.S.A., Europe, Asia and Africa, bringing global
perspectives to India’s transmission sector.

Directorship held in
other Companies
(Part-time) along with
listed entities from
which he/she
resigned in the past
three years

1. Rajasthan Power Grid Transmission Company
limited

Torrent Power Grid limited

Bihar Grid company limited

Sikkim Power Transmission limited

National high power test laboratory private limited
Butwal-Gorakhpur cross border power transmission
limited
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Name

Shri Mahesh Chandra Tewari

DIN

10671935

Date of Birth and Age

June 20, 1967/58 years

Date of Appointment

November 28, 2025

Qualification

B.Tech (Electrical) from Uttar Pradesh Technical
University (Lucknow) :

Expertise in specific
functional Area

Shri Mahesh Chandra Tewari presently serving as
Executive Director (ED), in Power Grid Corporation of
India Limited. He has over 36 years of working
experience in Power Sector at various key positions
experience of planning and coordinated development
of National Grid. He started his career with NTPC in
1989, and joined POWERGRID in 1991. With a
distinguished career spanning 36 years in the power
sector, he has worked in diverse capacities in
substations and transmission lines, covering
Operations & Maintenance, Construction, Commercial,
Engineering, Planning & Monitoring, among others in
NR-03, NR-01, WR-01, WR-02. With a career
spanning almost three decades, he brings a wealth of
experience and expertise in Operations & Maintenance
in substations and transmission lines.

Directorship held in
other Companies
(Part-time) along with
listed entities from
which hel/she
resigned in the past
three years

Nil
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CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U40102DL2006PLC156738
Regd. Office: 03" floor, FIEO, Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi-
110057

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

It gives me immense pleasure to present on behalf of the Board of Directors, the 19"
Annual Report of Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited (CPTC)
on the company's business operations, together with Audited Financial Statements
and Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

The Company would like to thank all the Members for their support, trust and expect
their cooperation in future also. The Company (CPTC), where it is today, is all
because of the untiring efforts from small team of its employees, continued guidance
from its stakeholders, regulatory authority and co-operation from local communities.
During the year, the Company continued to perform well and remains in good shape.
The management of the Company has effectively collaborated with local
communities during construction and operation & maintenance of the transmission

system, which is the first high-capacity cross border interconnection between India
and Nepal.

State of the Company’s affairs

Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited, a Joint Venture of Power
Grid Corporation of India Limited, SJVN Limited and Nepal Electricity Authority
(NEA), has constructed and commissioned 400 kV D/C transmission line of 85.55
kms of length from Muzaffarpur to Sursand (Indian portion of Indo-Nepal
Interconnection 400 kV D/C Muzaffarpur-Dhalkebar Transmission line). The line was
initially commissioned at 220 kV level with two 220 kV line bays at the POWERGRID
Muzaffarpur substation in Bihar on 19" February, 2016. This established a
synchronous interconnection between the Indo-Nepal electrical grids, facilitating the
import and export of power between the two countries.

The transmission line has been charged at 400 kV level on 11t November, 2020
after construction of 2 Nos. of 400 kV line bays. According to the Transmission
Service Agreement, the entire transmission charges of the Company are billed to
NEA of Nepal. Subsequently, the spare 2 Nos. 220 kV line bays along with one 400
kV D/C tower has been transferred to Bihar State Power Transmission Company

Limited (BSPTCL) for its use after receipt of regulatory approval on book cost during
the FY 2024-25.
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2. Financial Performance

The financial performance for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is as

under:
For the year ended March 31, |March 31, 2024
2025 Rs. in Lakhs
Rs. in Lakhs
Total transmission income invoiced and 3928.58 4263.73
realized
Total revenue from operation and finance 2823.06 3174.65
income (A)
Other Income (B) 212.48 28.69
Total Income (A+B) 3035.54 3203.34
Total Expenses 1285.27 1590.17
Profit Before Tax(EBIT) 1750.26 1613.17
Profit After Tax (A) 2111.98 2130.07
Balance Profit brought forward from 5677.13 4759.80
Previous Year (B)
Dividend & Tax (Paid for previous year | -1212.74 -1212.74
during the year) (C)
Balance Profit carried forward to Balance 6576.36 5677.13
Sheet (A+B-C)
Earnings Per Share in Rupee 4.35 4.39
Return on Capital Employed 15.31% 15.32%

3. Performance Highlights

The salient key performance highlights of our Company during the Financial Year
2024-25 are enumerated here under for the benefit of the shareholders.

(a) During the financial year 2024-25, the 400 kV Muzaffarpur- Sursand D/C

transmission line has been maintained at 100% availability.

(b) During the fiscal year 2024-25, the total energy transmitted (including both
imports and exports) through the transmission system amounted to 2,910.30

million units (MU).

(c) All Transmission Service Charges billed during the year were received on time,
with no outstanding trade receivables as of March 31, 2025.

(d) The'Company had recommended a final dividend of 25% on paid up equity share

capital for the FY 2024-25.

4. Project Cost

(a) Project Cost of 400 kV D/C Muzaffarpur- Sursand Transmission line and

2 Nos. 220 kV bay extensions




The 400 kV DI/C Muzaffarpur- Sursand Transmission line is under
commercial operation since 19" February, 2016.and the Final Audited
Project Cost after transfer of the spare assets, consisting of 2 Nos. 220 kV

line bays and one 400 kV D/C tower to BSPTCL is Rs. 232.1 Crores
(original cost 241.27 Crores).

(b) Project Cost of 2 Nos. 400 kV bays
The 2 Nos. 400 kV Bays at Muzaffarpur substation have been in commercial

operation since 11" November, 2020. The audited project cost is Rs. 9.89
Crores, which was entirely financed from internal resources.

5. Shareholding Structure

The Company's Authorized Share Capital is Rs.75 Crores as on 31% March, 2025 and its
issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital is Rs. 48,50,95,120/- divided into
48,509,512 Nos. of equity shares of Rs.10/- each. The shareholding structure of the
Company as on 315 March, 2025 is as follows.

No. Shareholder Nos. of Shares | % Holding
held

1. Power Grid Corporation of India 2,03,42,696 41.94
Limited (“POWERGRID")

2. SJVN Ltd (“SJVN”) 2,03,42,698 41.94

3 Nepal Electricity  Authority 78,24.114 16.12
(“NEA”)

Total 4,85,09,512 100
Dividend

During the financial year 2024-25, your Company paid final dividends of % 2.50 per
share, amounted to 1212.74 Lakhs out of profits of the Company for the FY 2023-
24.

The Directors of the Company recommended final dividend of ¥ 2.50 per share,
amounted of 2 1212.74 lakhs for the financial year 2024-25.

Reserves
Out of Net profits of 21 11.'98 Lakhs in current ‘Financial Year, the Company has

transferred an amount of ¥ 48.40 Lakhs to Self-Insurance Reserve. Retained
Earnings as on 318t March, 2025 stood at ¥ 6576.36 Lakhs.




8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

" Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments made under section 186 0f
the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not given any loans, provided any guarantee or security to any
other entity under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
details of the guarantee given and loan taken by the Company is given in the notes
to the financial statements.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related Parties

All Particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related Parties referred to Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is given at
Annexure-1 to the Directors’ Report. Related party transactions that were entered
into during the financial year were on arm’s length and were in the ordinary course
of business.

Material changes and commitments

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year
and date of this report.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 for the period under review.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate
Companies.

Risk Management

The company has identified the following external and internal risks and
implemented the following steps to mitigate them:

a) Project implementation and Management: All construction activities of the
company have been completed, and there are currently no projects under
construction.

b) Operation Maintenance of the Transmission System: The operation and
maintenance of the transmission system entail risks from breakdowns caused
by natural calamities and normal operational issues. POWERGRID, a global
leader in transmission services, has been entrusted with these responsibilities.
They possess substantial spares, expert manpower, and modern equipment.
Additionally, the company has established a self-insurance fund to mitigate
financial risks associated with these operations.

c) Revenue Risk: Revenue risk is mitigated by the Transmission Service

Agreement entered between the company and its sole user, NEA (Nepal
Electricity Authority), which secures the company's assets.
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15.

16.

17.

d) Debt Service Risk: The risk related to debt service is minimized py NEA's prompt
payment of all bills well before their due dates since th_e_ beginning. As of_ the
balance sheet date, there are no outstanding bills. Additionally, NEA pro_VIdes
robust payment security through measures like a one-year Letter of Credit and
Bank Guarantee for transmission charges.

e) Financing Risk: The project's entire loan is sourced from Power Finance

Corporation, a PSU, with over 50% of the total loan already repaid without any
defaults.

f) Foreign Currency Risk: There is no foreign currency risk involved as_the
company does not engage in any transactions in foreign currencies. All invoices
for transmission service charges to NEA are issued solely in Indian Rupees.

- Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

The company has established a vigil mechanism or whistleblower policy for
directors and employees to report genuine concerns or grievances regarding

unethical behavior, suspected fraud, or violations of the company's Code of
Conduct or Ethics Policies, as applicable.

Any actual or potential concerns, grievances, or violations of the code, regardless
of their perceived significance, are treated seriously by the Company. The vigil

mechanism ensures adequate safeguards against any victimization of directors and
employees who utilize it.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has adequate internal financial control with reference to financial
transactions considering its size and business.

Board and Committee Meetings

Board and Committee meetings held during the FY 2024-25 is placed in Annexure
-1l
Board of Directors & KMPs appointed/ resigned during the financial year

As on 31% March, 2025 the Board of Directors and KMPs of the companies are as

under:

S.No. | Name ~ Directorsl KMP |
1. | Shri Ravindra Kumar Tyagi  Chairman and Director
2. | Shri Sanjay Kumar Gupta _ Director |
3. | Shri Sushil Sharma R B Director -
4. | Shri Ajay Kumar Sharma ~Director
5. Shri Dirghayu Kumar Shreshtha | Director
6. | Shri Sathish Kumar J. Chief Executive Officer B
7. Shri Brundaban Dash Chief Financial Officer
8. Ms. Divya Sorayan Company Secretary




18.

19.

20.

21.

During the Financial year 2024-25, following changes took place in the Board of |

Directors and KMPs.

S. | Date | Directors/ KMP ~ Directors/ KMP
No. | Appointed Resigned/ Appointed }
1. | 09.05.2024 | Shri Dilip Nagesh Resigned from the position of |
| | Rozekar | Additional Director (POWERGRID) |
2. | 31.05.2024 | Shri Alok Kumar Appointed as Additional Director |
L ) Sharma (POWERGRID) |
3. 16.12.2024 | Shri Alok Kumar Resigned from the position of

Sharma Additional Director (POWERGRID)
4. 31.12.2024 | Shri Akhileshwar Singh | Ceased to be Director due to |

t retirement from SJVN Limited ‘

5. 09.01.2025 | Shri Sanjay Kumar Appointed as Additional Director |
| Gupta (POWERGRID)
6. 10.02.2025 | Shri Ajay Kumar Appointed as Additional Director
\ | Sharma (SJVN) ‘
7. 07.03.2025 | Shri Hira Lal Tayal Resigned from the position of Director |
(IEDCL) ‘
8. 07.03.2025 | Shri Bibhudutta Biswal | Resigned from the position of Director |
(IEDCL)

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal)

The company has internal complaints committee (ICC) in place to redress the

complaints of sexual harassment. During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company
has received no complaints of sexual harassment.

Holding of Website

The Company is holding a website in the name of www.cptcindia.com

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology

absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken
. by the company during the year under review.

Foreign exchange earnings and out go

There are no foreign exchange earnmgs and outgo during the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2025.

22. Change in the nature of business, if any

23.

There is no addition/ change in the nature of the Company business during the year.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

There is no significant or material orders passed by any authority which impacts the
going concern status and the Company’s operation in future.




24. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

As required under Section 134(3)(c) &134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors confirm that:

(a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standarQs
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

(b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the
period under review.

(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

25. Statutory Auditors

Your Company being a Joint Venture Company of Power Grid Corporation of India
Limited, SJVN Limited and Nepal Electricity Authority, wherein approximately eighty
four per cent of the paid-up capital is held by government companies, as such,
pursuant Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to
appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company, as recommended by the Comptroller
and Auditor General (CAG) of India.

Pursuant to above, M/s MRKS & Associates, Chartered Accountants was appointed
by Comptroller and auditors General of India as the Statutory Auditors of the
company for the FY 2025-26.

26. Statutory Auditors’ Report

M/s MRKS & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors for the
FY 2024-25 have given an unqualified report. The report is self-explanatory and
does not require any further comments by the Board of Directors.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to the Board
of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules
made thereunder.
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31.

32.

33.

Secretarial Audit

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under
the requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report from the practicing company
secretary is not applicable to the Company for the financial year ended 31%' March,
2025 as the borrowing limits of the Company has stand below Rs.100 Crores as on
318t March, 2025.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Company has generally followed the Secretarial Standards SS-1 & SS-2 issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Cost Auditors & Cost Records.

Appointment of Cost Auditor under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
made as the turnover of the company is less than the threshold limit provided in the
Rule, 4 thereunder.

Comptroller and Auditor General’s Comments

Company has received a letter dated November 07, 2025 from CAG audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the FY 2024-25. CAG has given no
comments for statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The copy of the letter is attached as Annexure-lIl.
Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors/management/agencies

None of the Auditors/management of the Company or agencies have reported any
frauds to the Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
including rules made thereunder.

Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92(3) read with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies
Act, 2013, Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the
Company and can be accessed at https://www.cptcindia.com/annual-return/

Particulars of Employees

- There are no employees drawing remuneration exceeding the limits specified under

34.

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules framed there under.

Declaration by Independent Director

As per the provisions of Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of

Directors) _Rule 2014, your company, being a joint venture company, is exempted
from appointment of Independent Directors.




35. Audit Committee

36.

37.

38.

39.

The Company has not framed Audit Committee as the provisions of Sec.tion 177 of
the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company, being a jomt venture
company in terms of notification dated 5" July 2017 and 13" July, 2017 issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MICA).

Nomination And Remuneration Committee/Policy

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are not applicable to the Company being a joint venture
company in terms of notification dated 5™ July 2017 and 13" July, 2017 issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs( MCA) and hence the Company has not devised any
policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of managerial remuneration,
directors qualifications, positive attributes, independence of directors and other
related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135, sub-section 9 Companies Act, 2013 and
amendment dated September 28, 2020 in Companies Act, 2013, Companies in
which CSR expenditure does not exceed fifty lakh rupees in a financial year do not
require to constitute Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the functions
of such committee shall be discharged by the Board of Directors of such Company.
The CSR report of financial year 2024-25 is attached as Annexure-IV.

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the Financial Year 2022-23, no application has been made under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence, the requirement to disclose the details of
application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year
is not applicable.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: December 19, 2025 u’/a/

Placg: New Delhi

Naveen Srivastava

Chairman & Director

DIN: 10158134

Address: 3" Floor,

Federation of Indian Export Organization (FIEO),
Niryat Bhawan,

Rao Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi 110057
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Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited

Annexure - |

Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts arrangements entered into by the
Company with Related Parties referred to in sub- section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto:

1) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not atarm’s length basis

CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED = (‘the
Company”) has not entered into any contract/ arrangements/ transaction with its
related parties which are not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length during
the Financial Year 2023-24. The Company has laid down policy and processes/
procedures so as to ensure compliance to the subject section in the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) and the corresponding Rules. In, addition, the process goes through
internal and external checking followed by Board of Directors.

Name (s) of the Related Party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable
Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: Not Applicable

Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: Not Applicable
Salient terms of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions including the value,
if any: Not Applicable

Justification for entering into such contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: Not
Applicable

Date (s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable

Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General Meeting as
required under first proviso to section 188: Not Applicable

2) Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length

basis:
A. B
‘ Serial | Particulars ‘ Details
No. o
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party and | [L&FS Energy
nature of relationship Development Company
Limited
b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Dividend Paid
transactions

c) | Duration of the contracts/ -

arrangements/ transactions /’_J




| salient

| Amount paid as advances, if any

terms of the contracts/
arrangements/ transactions including
the value, ifany
Date (s) of approval by the Board

7 4,60,84,040/- |

12.09.2024 (In AGM
final dividend declared
for FY 2023-24)

| transactions

Serial | Particulars Details
No.
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party | Power Grid Corporation of
and nature of relationship India Limited (26%
shareholder)
b) | Nature of contracts/ | Operation and Maintenance
arrangements/ transactions Agreement
c) | Duration of the contracts/| 2 years
arrangements/ transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts/ | ¥1,17,45,720/-
arrangements/ transactions
including the value, if any
e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board | 23.08.2024
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any | N.A.
Serial | Particulars Details
No.
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party and | Power Grid Corporation
nature of relationship of India Limited (26%
shareholder)
b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Deputation Expenses
transactions
¢) | Duration of the contracts/ | -
arrangements/ transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts/ %1,26,07,005/-
arrangements/ transactions including
the value, if any
e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board 22.08.2023
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
Serial | Particulars Details
No.
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party and | Power Grid Corporation
nature of relationship of India Limited (26%
shareholder)
b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Business Support

Services




nature of relationship

c) |Duraton of the  contracts/ |-
arrangements/ transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts/ | % 93,583/-
arrangements/ transactions including
the value, if any |
e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board 20-09-2013
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
Serial | Particulars Details
No.
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party and | Power Grid Corporation
nature of relationship of India Limited (26%
shareholder)
b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Dividend Paid
transactions
c) | Duration of the contracts/ | -
arrangements/ transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts/|¥ 3,15,31,183/-
arrangements/ transactions including
the value, if any
e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board 12.09.2024 (In AGM
final dividend declared
for FY 2023-24)
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
Serial | Particulars Details
No.
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party and | SJVN Ltd.
nature of relationship
b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Dividend Paid
transactions
c) | Duration of the contracts/ | -
arrangements/ transactons |
d) | Salient terms of the contracts/ |2 3,15,31,183/-
arrangements/ transactions including
the value, if any
e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board 12.09.2024 (In AGM
final dividend declared
- for FY 2023-24)
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
Serial | Particulars Details
No.
a) | Name (s) of the Related Party and | Nepal Electricity

Authority




b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Dividend Paid

|
| transactions
- ¢) | Duration

i arrangements/ transactions

d) | Salient terms of the contracts/| Z 121,27 378/-
‘ arrangements/ transactions including
 the value, if any

e) Date (s) of approval by the Board | 12.09.2024 (In AGM |

]
|
| \
|
[
L

Date: December 19, 2025
Place: New Delhi

) } Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. |

of the contracts/ | -

final dividend declared
for FY 2023-24)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Naveen Srivastava

Chairman & Director

DIN: 10158134

Address: 3" Floor,

Federation of Indian Export Organization (FIEQ),

Niryat Bhawan,
Rao Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi 110057




Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited

Annexure - I

~ Number of Board Meetings held during the FY 2024-25

} The details of meetmgs held durmg the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows:

:
:

| ' Date
\

Total number of

Directors

Present

No. of Directors

'May 31, 2024

’ September 12, 2024

‘January 09, 2025

|
' March 20, 2025
L

7
7
5
5

7
7
4
5

' Details of the Board Meétinqs anhd Attendance of the Directors during the FY 2024-25

is as follows:

Date of the Meeting

Attended by

May 31, 2024

NookwnNd—

Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.

Ravindra Kumar Tyagi
Alok Kumar Sharma

Hira Lal Tayal

Bibhudutta Biswal
Akhileshwar Singh

Sushil Sharma

Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

September 12, 2024

Noohs~owh =

Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.

Ravindra Kumar Tyagi
Alok Kumar Sharma

Hira Lal Tayal

Bibhudutta Biswal
Akhileshwar Singh

Sushil Sharma

Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

January 09, 2025

Hon -~

Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.

Ravindra Kumar Tyagi
Sanjay Kumar Gupta
Rajendra Prasad Goyal*
Sushil Sharma

*Sh. Rajendra Prasad Goyal was nominated as director by
SJVN Limited on the Board of the Company but could not be |
appointed as director in CPTC due to number in directorships

already held by him in more than 10 companies.

March 20, 2025

gL =

Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.
Sh.

Ravindra Kumar Tyagi
Sanjay Kumar Gupta
Sushil Sharma

Ajay Kumar Sharma
Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON TIIE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements ol Cross Border Power Transmission Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139 (5) of the Act s responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Revised Audit Report dated 30 October 2025 which supersedes their earlier Audit
Report dated 29 August 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Cross Border Power Transmission Company
Limited for the vear cnded 3] March 2025 under scction 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company
personncl and a selective examination of some of the accounting records,

In view of the revision(s) made in the statutory auditor’s report, to give effect to some of
my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no further comments to offer
upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi (Tanuja v
Date: o ?/ 1 , 20625 Director General of Audit (E



Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited

Annexure-|V

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S
REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 1ST DAY OF
APRIL, 2020

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The CSR Policy is a reflection of the
Company’s commitment to engage and work closely with the Community and Society.

The programs and projects under the policy are designed to contribute towards social
development and will be implemented meticulously to make a positive contribution and
impact.

The CSR Vision, Policy and programs are overseen by the Board of the Company
through its CSR Committee and supported by a team of professionals with a deep
passion towards societal development.

The Company believes in designing its CSR initiatives in line with the priorities of the
government and needs of the local community. CSR Projects will be aligned with the
requirements of Schedule VII of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 as applicable
from time to time.

2. Composition of CSR Committee (Not Applicable)

3. | Provide the web link where Composition | https://www.cptcindia.com/csr/
of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company.
4. | Provide the details of Impact assessment
of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies -
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report)

Details of the amount available for set off
5. | inpursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the | NIL
Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and
amount required for set off for the financial

year, if any.
Sl. Financial | Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be
No. Year from preceding financial | setoff for the financial

years (in Rs.) year, if any (in Rs.)

1. N.A. NIL NIL




6. Average net profit of the
company as per section
| 135(5).
' (a) Two percent of average
7. net profit of the company
as per section 135(5)

¥ 16,57,38,079/-

¥ 33,14,762/-

}(b) Surplus arising out of
'the CSR projects or
programmes or activities
of the previous financial
years.

NIL

(c) Amount required to be
set off for the financial
year, if any.

NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation
for the financial vyear
(7a+7b-7c).

¥ 33,14,762/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.) |
SI-\motufnt Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund

ptiﬁ ar Unspent CSR Account as | specified under Schedule VIl as per

I8 per section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5).
Financial

(i\|’1e§;.) Amount. Date of Name of Amount Date of

' transfer. the (in INR) transfer.
Fund

33,14,762 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7. |8
c o S w0 ,c0
) 6w t 2w~ | OEt S | SELDE =
s 52 ° | R2e9 30289 05532  25535,3
2, 28 |2 | 887 2EYoE |Ba%ed TER2Efe
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o £co
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0o O ]
u6 O.gg E — o
S o eST = o L 0 o .
z E £22 3 = = £ ¥ 59
; o g§o= © ) a2 @ n o<z
(2] 4 =2gL> 4 7] (=] 4 O c
~ 1 | Artificial Limbs to Yes | Bihar = 9,99,000 Yes N.A N.A
Divyangs ot
&(B
N @©
N =2
=N
= |




2 | Materials to Yes | Bihar | T _ "7,91,000 Yes N.A N.A
Rajkiye Madhya o=
Vidyalaya, ‘% g
" ©
Loknathpur, g =
=
3 Materials to Yes | Bihar | © _ 4,06000 Yes N.A N.A
Rajkiye Prathmik e £
Vidyalaya, 2 g
Madhurapur NS
>w
=
4 | Furniture and Yes | Bihar | 5§ _ 10,64,000 Yes N.A N.A
other materials to =
Community | E
Health Centre N %
(CHC), Kudhani =
Total Amount - 32,60,000
spent on CSR
Activities
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads ¥ 54,762/-
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable NIL
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ¥ 33,14,762/-
(8b+8c+8d+8e)
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any
S No. | Particular Amount (In ¥)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section | 33,14,762/-
135(5)
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 33,14,762/-
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- | NIL
(iv)]
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
S | Preceding | Amount | Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount
No | Financial transfer | spentin under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), remainin
Year red to the if any g to be
unspent | reporting | Name of Amount (in | Date of spent in
CSR Financial | the Fund | Rs.) Transfer succeedi
Accoun | Year (in ng
tunder | Rs.) financial
section years (in
135(6) Rs.)
(In Rs.)
1. 2023-24 | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. 2022-23 | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 2021-22 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): NIL




1
S
No

11,

10.

2 3 4 '8 6 7 '8 9

Project | Name | Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulativ | Status of
Id ' of the | Year in | duration | amount |spent on|e amount  the
Project | which  the allocated | the spent  at project -
project was ‘ for the | project | the end of | Complete
commenced project |in  the  reporting | d/
| | (InRs.) | reporting ' Financial | ongoing
| Financial | Year (In
‘ i ‘year (In | Rs.)
| Rs.) !

NILNILNIL NIL [NIL [ NIL NIL NIL

Total | L | .

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating | N.A.

to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year
(asset wise details) -

(a) Date of creation or acgwsmon of the capital asset(s) | -

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name |
such capital asset is registered, their address etc. o
(d) Provide details of the capital asset( ) created or acquired (|nclud|ng | -
complete address and location of the capital asset)

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the | N.A.
average net profit as per section 135(5)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: December 19, 2025 ,/'/a
Place: New Delhi /

Naveen Srivastava

Chairman & Director

DIN: 10158134

Address: 3" Floor,

Federation of Indian Export Organization (FIEQ),

Niryat Bhawan,
Rao Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi 110057



CHARTERED ACC

@, MRKS AND ASSOCIATES
INDIA o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

inion

The revised report supersedes our earlier audit report dated August 29, 2025, issued at the direction of
Comptroller and Auditor general (CRAG) to incorporate the inputs provided by CRAG, We confirm that there is
na change in the true and fair view of the financial statements as expressed in our earlier report and also none of
the figures have undergone any changes in the financials of the company as on Mareh 31st 2025, Furthermore,
we confirm that all facts and infermation available up to the date of the original report have been duly considered,

We have audited the accompany|ng Ind AS Financial Statements of Cross Border Power Transmission Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Notes Forming Part of Financial Statement for the year ended on that date, and a summary of material
accounting policies and ather explanatory information{hereinafter referred to as the * Financial Stateme nts”).

In our opinion and te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indlan Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted inIndla, of the state of affairs of the Com pany asat March
31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and Its cash flows for the year ended on
that date,

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {“5A"s)
specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethies Issuad by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{"ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
In accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. Wa belleve that the audlt evidence obtalned
by us is sufficient and apprapriate to provide a basls for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of r

We draw attention to Note No: 2.2 which outlines the restatement of comparative figures arising from an errar
in the recognition of Deferred Tax Liability (DTL), The Company had recognized a DTL of Rs. 435.23 lakhs as at
March 31, 2017, and this amount has remained unchanged since then, Consequently, the financial statements
have been restated, and a third balance sheet has been presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 to reflect the
correction of this error, The adjustment has resulted in a reduction of Rs. 3491.97 lakhs In Other Equity in the
opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2023,

(v o)

———

Head Office : 1015, 10th Floor, Tower-2, Pearls Omaxe, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Mew Delhi-110034
Branch Office: 1507, Tower-4, DLF Corporate Greens, Sector-74A, Gurugram - 122004
Email; suppert@mrks.co.in ® Weabsite : www.mrks.in



Further, we refer to Note 38, which states that there has been advice from the statutory auditors regarding the
calculation of Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL)/Deferred Tax Assets (DTA). Accordingly, a restatement of the DTL
amounting to X 3,927.20 lakhs has arisen in the opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2023. Please note that we
have not provided any such advice as referenced.

Qur opinion |s not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were audited by M/s Godara &
Company who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements vide their report dated May 31,
2024, Our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 is not medified in respect of
this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

_SFH; T Ke'yrAudItMatter Auditor's Response
' Revenue recognition
1, An  AGREEMENT (implementation and | Our audit procedures included and were not limited

transmission service agreement i.e. referred
as [TSA) is entered into on 13™ of December,
2011 at Mew Delhi, India between Nepal
Electricity Authority, an undertaking of
GON, established wunder the Nepal | >

to the following:

Transmission service charges.

Obtain and read agreement document for

Electricity Authority Act, 2041 having its
head office at Durbar Marg, Kathmandu,
Nepal
And

Cross Border Power Transmission
Company of India (CPTC), a2 joint venture
company of Power Grid Corporation of
India, SIVN Limited and IL&FS Energy
Development Company Limited,

incorporated in India under the Companies |

Act 1956, having its registered office 3rd
Floor, Niryat Bhawan, Rao Tula Ram Marg,
MEW DELHI = 110057

And
Power Transmission Company Nepal
Limited (PTCN), a joint venture company of

identification of distinct performance obligations
under agreement and identified significant terms

and condition in agreement to assess
management  conclusion  regarding  the
identification of distinct performance
obligations.

Performed walk-through of the calculation
process associated with the annual transmission
service charges.

Tested the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the controls established by the
Company in the process of calculation of
transmission  service charges and check
compliance with Basis for computation of Annual
TSC prescribed in stated ITSA agreement
(Schedule 6.2)

Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company
in the Financial Statements for compliance with
the applicable authoritative pronouncements,




audit of significant event or transactions
that occurred during the peried and
assumptions and estimation used by
management expert in amortization table
preparation.

TSC for TLP India shall be determined for the
whole of the 400 kV D/C Muzaffarpur to
Border Point Transmission line including Bay
equipment at Muzaffarpur Substation TSC
shall be determined based on Capital cost of
TLP India, which shall include the
expenditure incurred up to the commercial
operation date, including interest during
construction and financing charges etc. as
certified by Auditor ( Basis far
computation of Annual TSC prescribed in
above stated agreement-Schedule 6.1).

Service Concession Arrangement as per
Appendix D of Ind-A3 115,

> Arrangement to Build, Operate and
Transfer (BOT) has been classified as
Service Concesslon Arrangement as per
Appendix D of Ind-As 115,

» Recelvable Under SCA
Under a SCA, where the Company has
acquired contractual rights to receive
specified determinable amounts for use
of an asset, such amounts are
recognised as “Financial Assets” and are
disclosed as "Receivable against Service
Concession Arrangements”. The value
of the Financial Asset has been
accounted at Amortised Cost in
accordance with IND AS 109 and
consisting the cost of construction
services rendered, which is determined
at the inception of the contract and
reflects the fair wvalue of the
constructed asset. The cash flow from
a Financial Asset commences from the

== J

=




NEA and Ei.&FS Energy Development
Company Limited, incorporated in Nepal
under the Company Act 2006 of Nepal,
having its registered office at C/o Nepal
Electricity ~ Authority, Durbar  Marg,
Kathmandu, MNepal For exchange of
electricity between Nepal and India, a 400
kV D/C transmission line of approximately
145 km in length, running from Dhalkebar
{in Nepal) to Muzaffarpur (in India), to be
initially charged at 220 kV, and associated
bay extension work at Muzaffarpur and
Dhalkebar  substations as  stated
hereunder:

I Approximately 100 km of
transmission line from Muzaffarpur
{in India) to the TLP-Nepal
Connaction Point, and a bay

extension at Muzaffarpur
substation is being implemented by
CPTC, and

.  Approximately 45 km  of

transmission line from Dhalkebar (in
Nepal) to the TLP-Nepal Connection
Point, and a bay extension at
Dhalkebar substation, is being
implemented by PTCN;

Performance obligations of parties under
ITSA agreement

CPTC has agreed to make available the
entira transmission capacity of TLP India to
MNEA on a commercial basis subject to the

conditions of this Agreement for
transmitting electric power of NEA.
MNEA can use this line for their own

requirement or make available to the other
users in Nepal and/or India for using this line
for transmittal of power, based on a
separate transmission service agreement
with NEA and pay CPTC the Transmission
Service Charges as determined in
accordance with the terms of this

Agreement,

We have |dantified following Key audit
matter on the basis of their effect on the

Finance incom . ivable i

Concession Arrangements”.

rvi

Company has practice to calculate Finance income
and receivable against SCA using amortization
schedule prepared by management expert as per
provisions of [TSA. (amortization schedule is based on
assumptions and estimations).

Our audit procedures included and were not limited
to the following:

~ MAssess the qualifications, experience, and
independence of the management expert before
relying on their expertise,

» Exercise due professional care in evaluating the
qualifications and objectivity of the management
expert. This includes reviewing their credentials,
experience, and any potential conflicts of interest
that may affect their impartiality.

~ Performed walk-through of the caleulation
pracess assoclated with the finance Income &
SCA.

#  Tested the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the controls established by the
Company in the process cormputation of finance
income & SCA.

~ Reviewed the disclosuras made by the Company
in the Financial Statements for compliance with
the applicable authoritative pronouncements.




Commercial Operation Date as certified
by the granting authority for the SCA.
The cash flow from a Financial Asset is
accounted using the effective interest
rate method. The intrinsic interest
element in each Annuity receipt is
accounted as finance Income and the
balance amount {excluding the amount
received for operationand maintenance
of the cost of asset) Is accounted
towards recovery of dues from the
“Receivable against Service Concession
Arrangements",

Transfer of asset to BSPTCL by CPTC at book
value,

Agreement for use of CPTC's 02 no. of 220
kv AIS Line Bays & 1 no. 400kV DD tower
near gantry at 400/220 kV Muzaffarpur
(POWERGRID) Substation by BSFTCL till
salef transfer.

This agreement made on this 10th day of
March 2023, at Patna by and among

Cross Border Power Transmission
Company Ltd, (hear in after referred to as
"CPTC or Seller” )

And

Bihar State Power Transmission Company
Ltd, (hear in after referred to as "BSPTCLor
Buyer”)

Whereas

~ BSPTCL needed the aforesaid spare 2
No line bays and one no, tower near
Gantry to terminate its, 200 KV
Muzaffarpur-Chhapra (New), Amnour
transmission line at POWERGRID
Muzaffarpur Substation.

» CPTC board of directors (At 75th
meeting of board of directors of CPTC
held on Tuesday, January 17, 2023
through video conferencing) and
BSPTCL board of directors approved
the transfer of the subject asset at
book cost plus G5T as on the date of
transfer or use whichever is earlier

Our audit procedures included and were not limited
to the following:

F.d

F

Obtain and read agreement document and other
documents that were part of the agreement. for |
identification of distinct performance obligations
under agreement and identified significant terms
and condition in agreement to assess
management  conclusion  regarding  the
identification of  distinct performance
obligations.

Performed walk-through of the adjustment made
for transfer of asset,

# Tested the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of the controls established by the
Company in the process transfer of asset,
Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company
in the Financial Statements for compliance with
the applicable authoritative pronouncements.




after all regulatory and statutory
clearances.

» Keeping in the view of urgency of
charging 220 KV Muzaffarpur-Chhapra
(New), Amnour transmission line at
POWERGRID Muzaffarpur Substatian,
BSPTL has requested for permitting
use of CPTC's 02 no. of 220 kv AIS Line
Bays & 1 no. 400kV DD tower near
gantry at 400/220 kV Muzaffarpur
(POWERGRID) Substation, till actual
sale/ transfer proceeding are
completed.

CPTC agrees to allow use of the above
referred assets by BSPTCL on the
following terms & conditions:

» BSPTCL has to deposit entire estimated
book wvalue of the assets plus
applicable GST amount as on
31.1.2023 amounted to Rs.
8,28,07,689.00 in advance as a security
deposit till actual saleftransfer of
assats,

~ Actual sale/ transfer of the subject
assets shall take place only after
getting  Regulatory approval  from
CERC, to do so under relevant
Electricity Act.

~ Only after receipt of regulatory
approval from CERC, formal sale-
purchase agreement between CPTC
and BSPTCL shall be signed,

# It is the responsibility of BSPTCL to
take any permission/ approval from
any authority/ institute including
POWERGRID before use of the assets
where ever itis required at their risk
and cost.

Above sale completed in the month of
October, 2023 after getting requlired
approval for transfer of asset as per above
agreement (CERC in its order 86/MT/2023
dated 05.10,2023 accorded approval for
transfer of stated asset to BSPTCL and
CPTC BOD took note of the same In 79"
meeting of BOD held on Tuesday,
Decermnber 05, 2023 via video conferencing,

The management of company (CPTC) has
obtalned certificates of cost for above
mentioned asset.




The above certified cost less amortization
l.e. book value as on the concerned date is
adjusted by company (CPTC) from Capital
Cost which weas used by company In its
Amortisation Schedule for computation of
finance income. (Refer key audit matter
MNo.1 above),

The above adjustment from Capital Cost
under Amortisation Schedule results in
reduction in the financial assets of the
Company in the month of March 2024 and
annual revenue for remalning life of the
assets. (Refar key audit matter No.l
above),

Since above certification of cost invalve
professional judgment of certificate jssuer
and involvement of CERC, (ministry of
power, Govt. of India) in approval of above
transfer of asset, we reported this transfer
of asset as key audit matter,

Information Other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The ather information comprises the
Information Included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does not Include the
Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134{5) of the Companies Act,
2013 {“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statemeants that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in |ndia.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that



are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intermal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cancern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting Process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also!

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

# Obtain an understanding of Internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ar conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinian. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves
fair presentation,



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually orin aggregate, makes
It probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financlal Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstaterents in the
Financlal Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls
that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure -A, which forms a part
of this report, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necassary for the purpase of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the Company so far, as
appears from our examination of such books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, Staterment of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account and returns.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

{e] On the basis of written representations received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, we report that none of the Directors Is disqualified as on 31* March, 2025 from being appointed
as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to aur separate repert in “Annexure- B”, Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that section 197 is not applicable as
company has not paid any director remuneration. Hence reporting as per Section 197(16) is not required.



{h) As required by Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 Issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of clause (j) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
Financial Statement — Refer Note 25 to the Ind AS Financial Statement,

[Il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses,

. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the [nvestor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company,

IV. {a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed In the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested (elther
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatscever by
or on behalf of the company ["Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the llke
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities {"Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indlrectly, lend or Invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
clreumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belleve that the representations
under sub-clause (I} and (Il of Rule 11{e}, as provided under (I} and (li} above, contaln any material
misstaterment.

V.  The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

VI. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act in the "Annexure C" on the directions
Issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.



VI, Based on our examination, which include test checks, the company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility as required under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transaction recorded in the
software, Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with and audit trail has been preserved by the company as per statutory
requirement for record retention.

For MRKS And Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 023711N

Kamal Ahuja
{Partner)

M. No. 505788
Place: New Delhi

Date: 30 gc4nbeu, 2015
PINIS505TggpMTS P2 ISY




ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Compa ny on the Ind AS
Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2025, we report that:

{a} (AJThe Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Intangible Assats,

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment of the
Company have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification as compared to the book records.

(e} The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3{i){c) of the Order is not
applicable.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3{i)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company
for halding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii}{a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 2 5 crore, in aggregate, at any
points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and hence reporting under clause 3{ji)(b) of the Order is notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on such tests which we considered
necessary, we report that the company has not granted any |eans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the provisions of paragraph (iii}) (), {b) and (c} of the above order are not
applicable to the Company.

According ta the information and explanations glven to us, the Com pany has not made any loans, investments,
or given any guarantees or provided any security pursuant to the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph (iv) of the above orderare not applicable to the
Company.




i

wil.

wiil,

In aur opinian and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits fram the public during the year under audit. Therefare, directives issued by Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules
framed there under are not applicable to the company.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, specified by the Central Government and are of the apinion that, prima
facle, the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, in
our opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and Service
Tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. We are infermed that the provisions
of Excise Duty are nat applicable to the company. According to the information and explanation given to us,
no undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at March 21, 2025 fora period of more than six months
from the date they became payable,

{b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues as referred to in sub-
clause (a), which have not been deposited on account of dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as Income du ring the
year.

{2) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to any financial institution, bank or Government. The Company
does not have any debenture holders

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term
purposes by the company

{¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company applied the
term loans taken during the year for their intended purpase.

(d) On an overall examination of the financlal statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} Since, the company does not have any subsidiary, accordi nely reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable to the company.

{f) The company has not raised |oans during the year on the pledge of securities held in Its su bsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies,



i,

i

xiii,

xiv.

xvi,

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has ot

raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments} and term
loans during the year.

(b) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or eptionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company orany fraud on
the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year under review.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub- section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditars In Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companles (Audit and Audltors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no whistle-blower
complaints had been recelved by the company,

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore
the provisions of paragraph 3(xli) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the recards of
the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Further the details of the transactions have been disclosed In the Ind AS Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the company has an
internal audit system eammensurate with the size and nature of its business,

(B) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

According to information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the records of the
company, the company has not entered inte any non-cash transactions with directors or person connected
with him. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable.

{2} In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under elause 3(xvi)(a), (b} and (¢) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reparting under clause 3(xvi){d) of the Order is
not applicable.



xvli,

Avilis

Xix,

Wi,

Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{xviii) of the Order
is not applicable.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financlal ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We,
howewver, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a periad of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due,
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount
under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accardingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and
3{xx){b) of the Order are not applicable
The reporting under clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the company. Aceordingly no comment has
been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For MRKS And Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 023711N Pt

{ g :III-':.-I'.
I 1 .'I.'l
gy _, J

Kamal Ahuja g

(Partner)

M. No. 505788

Place: New Delhi

pate: 30t pe hbﬂf' 207
PN 25505788 6N JH PP2ISY



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' PORT

Repart on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cross Border Power Transmission
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31* March, 2025 in eonjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Co ntrols over Financlal
Reporting (the “Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the erderly and efficient conduct of its bu siness, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and erro rs, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infermation, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
Issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
contrels systemn over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included cbtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selacted depend on the auditor's
judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Finandial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting Is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements far external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting Includes those policies and procedures that:

a, Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

b, Pravide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Financial Statements in accordance with ge nerally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statemnents,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent [imitations of internal financial controls over fina ncial reporting, Including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaterments due to error or fraud may
oceur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opini

In our opinion, to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reparting were opera ting effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued
by the |nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MRKS And Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 023711N

Kamal Ahuja
(Partner)

M. No. 505788
Place: New Delhi
bate: 30" ACtobey, 292¢

UDIN: 255059 & § EMTp PP21sY



ANNEXURE -C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Annexure-C referred to in our Independent Auditor's report to the members of the Cross-Border Power
Transmission Company Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31* March 2025, we repart

that:

In the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under sub section (5) of the section 143
of the Companies Act 2013, based on the verification of records of the company and the information and

explanation given to us, we report that:

Directions
Assess the fair valuation of all the Investments, both
quoted and unquoted, made directly by the Company
or through Trusts, for Post-retirement benefits of the
employees. This includes verifying valuation
methodologies, ensuring consistency with Ind AS and
reviewing supporting documentation. The auditor
shall provide a brief note on the valuation approach,
its reasonability, and compliance with applicable
regulations, reporting any material deviations or
misstatements,

Report

As per the Information and explanation provided by
the management, noinvestments were made for Post-
retirement benefits of the employees, accordingly the
assessment of fair valuation would not apply.

Whether the company has system in place to process
all the accounting transactions through IT system? If
yes, the Implications of processing of accounting
transactions outside |T system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

The Company is having ERP system (SAP) in place for
processing all accounting transactions. Based on our
verification, no accounting transaction is being
recorded/ processed other than through the ERP
system in place.

Whether funds {grants/subsidy, ete.)
recelved/recelvable for specific schemes from
Central/State Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for as per the applicable
accounting standards or norms and whether the
received funds were utilised as per Its terms and
conditions? Whether accounting of interest earnad
on grants received has been done as per terms and
conditions of the Grant. List the cases of deviation.

The Company is engeged in a cross-border
transmisslon project and operates under a
Transmission Service Agreement with Nepal Electricity
Authority, During the financial year 2024-25, the
Company did not receive or have any receivable funds,
grants, or subsidies from the Indian Government.

Whether the Company has identified the key Risk
areas? If yes, whether the Company has formulated
any Risk Management Palicy to mitigate these risks?
If yes, (a) whether the Risk Management Policy has
been formulated considering global best practices?
(b} Whether the Company has identifled its data
assets and whether It has been valued appropriately?

As per discussions with the mahagement,_.k_e; rlsk
areas have been identified. However, a formal Risk
Management Policy has not been formulated. Instead,
a Self-lnsurance Reserve has been created for all
assets, as the management believes that such a
| reserve will adequately address the associated risks.

The Company has not identified its data assets and
hence valuation of such data assets is not applicable.




Whether the Company is complying with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and other applicable rules and regulations of
SEBI, Department of Investment and Public Asset
Management, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Department of Public Enterprises, Reserve Bank of
India, Telecom Regulatory Authority of India, CERT-
IN, Ministry of Electronics and Information
Technology and National Payments Corporation of
India wherever applicable? If not, the cases of
deviation may be highlighted,

For MRKS And Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 023711N

(Partrier)
M. No. 505788
Place: New Delhi

oate: 30% 1y tobey, 902
25505183 BMYRT ParsY

The Company Is an unlisted company, Accordingly, the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable,

According to the information and explanation
provided by management, the company is in
compliance with the applicable rules and regulations,
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COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET A8 AT MARCI 31, 2025
In Lakhs [ F In Laktha
As at As A ar
Note No, 31 March 2025 31 Mavch 2024 01 April 2023
ASSETS
(1) Non-current wssets
(8} Privperty, plont and equipisent A fi.5i A3 27
(bHutmngitle nssces au 02 007 013
(e} Finanscinl sweis
i) Service contession upreeement TL, & 55 1A &R 1475488 135.817.09 17,897,635
() Detirred tox nusers {neg 4,14 - .
(e} Cbher non-curren) fssety & 373 3.73 L
Non-current assets (Net) 14,771.33 15827,19 17,5040,12
(2) Cuurrent assety
) Finanuts| ssets
{13 Trode feceivnhlay 7 1608 A4S 30148
(i) Cosh aund cash equivalents 3 3022440 289455 349180
(i) Bunk balanees oilier thun cash & cosh aquivalent BA Tuy T.99 7.09
{iv) Loans and advances [ =
(i) Eervice concesslan arrangements TL & 55 dALD 1,203.34 138427 I.282.67
(wh Oither ewrrent Bannelal pascis SO S04 50.44)
A} Diibier cument nsscls n 0,09 15,93 1.31
Currend assets (Net) e 40504, 77 4,712.19 5,225.34
TFTAL ARRETS Lh 45200 20.550.38 23013446
EQUITY aND LIARILITIES
Equity
) Exuity shure capital 14 4 H50,95 ABE0US 485095
(1) Othier crjuity
{1} Betnined earmings 110 0.576.30 567713 4,754 .80
Tatal Equity 14273 10,528 g HAETILTS
LIABILITIRS d
{1} Nowvcureent Rabilities
{u} Finnncinl finbiliies
() Bormowdigs 124 0,65.30.4| 745650 9,346,717
(B Provisdong, Ia K00 0.5 .0
{e) Delierredd tax lobilitios {mal) 3 - 63,38 |14ﬁ2.ls_‘
Nov-curvent linhilltes (M) G, 539, ) B.S0%42 UL 92
(2} Current Hobilijes
(m) Fiisunctal lisbilities
(#) Rarrarangs I3 130562 1.205.62 1,279,587
(it} Troce payabie 121
= Tosal owtstanding ducs of niery & el cnlarprises - - *
- Tatal ratstemting dues of ather thon maicri & small enterprises IR 7352 -
(ikip Lriber ewrrent Gunngial lanbilithes 14 [ENT 20850 HIED
(b} Oither current Habilitios 15 11,77 11.34 HAOT
() Provisionsy 16 03 H.90 106,35
(el Current s lialiides 16A 4693 -
Current ibnbiliries (Net 1 36.L8Y 1.500.44 2458, T4
et Tduhilivien Wi, 70 [N 1285997
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1943210 20,539.38 1313446

Tl nccompaiying notes s he integral purt of Aauncinl
Alalement groaping  regrouping of previeys amoils |
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CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION
3rd FLOOR, NIRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSI

COMPANY LIMITED
TE R&R HOSPITAL

RAOQTULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - | 10057

STATEMENT OF FROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 20235

In Lalhs In Lakhs
Year Ended Year Ended
Mt 31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024
Continuing operations
Revenue from opertions 17 2R823.06 220
Onther ingome I8 212,48 213.14
Total income 3.,035.54 _3,203.34
Expenses
Employee benefils expense 19 99,83 #9.35
Finance cost 20 79200 OHG 48
Depreciation and nmortisation expense JA&IB 2.51 208
Transmission. administration and other expenses 21 390.93 jlz.26
Total expenses 1,285.27 1,590.17
Profit! Inss before tax 1,750.26 161317
Current tax ¢ Current vear 2 305,79 281 .88
Mat eredit entitlement -305.79 -281.88
Net Change in (DTA) / DTL -361.72 516,90
Tax Expenscs -361.72 -516.90
Profit! (loss) for the year 211198 213007
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign cperations
Total comprehensive income! (loss) for the yeur, net of fux 2,111.98 2,130.07
Eurnings per share
Earning per cquity share (par value Rs. 10/ cacl): % 41% 439
basic & diluted (Rs.)
Earning per equity share (par value Rs, 10/ cach);
basic & diluted (Rs.)
4.35 439
The accompanying notes Forms the integral part of linancial
statement grouping / regrouping of previous amounts / figures
has been done whereever required. 1-38

For MEKS & Associntes
ICAT firm reglstratlon number; Py IR, S
Churtered avcountants Pl 3Gy

Partner : Kamnl Ahuja
Membership No. $5788
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Date :
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Director
DIN Mo HG2R011

e T?

Manisha Dhollcheria
Chicl Flnancial Officer
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Divya Sorayan
Company Secretary
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CROSE BORIER FOWER TRANSKISSION COMPANY LIMITED
Jrd FLOOK, NIRY AT BHAWAN, DPPOSITE B&R HOSPITAL
BAQ TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE ¥ EAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

In Lakhs In Lkdes
- ::ll:': Ended 3 '!'ﬂrsl‘llll':
A, Cash flow from operating sclivities
Profit leFore taxathi 1,750.26 164317
Al justments Favy
haprocintion axpens 8 208
Intzrzat income - s
Intereat axpenag a0 QHG 4R
Operating los proflt befare worldng capiial changes 21,544,77 LA601.TS
Mavement In warking capital:-
Deeroass’ {Tacrons) in Non- Cirrenl SCA 106221 280,56
Dicoronss (Teresse) in Cuman SCA 18093 {10160y
Lhcarcsse! (bicrease) in trade rocuivables (17513 13
Lhezreased (Bnerense) in Otler gument s & Nea-Llirmenl assals 1407 L8
Inerexse’ (Deercasa) in Mon Current |[zhilitios - 52
Increaans (Dhensns) i otbar curram linbilitios, exrment liahiline & prowiioas {46.51) (B2, 66}
Canls Mow Tromy! wsed bn opertiuns 373754 377046
T Pl Rotiand) 243.52 29650
Mot cash Bow ramy wsed In operating activities Fdm 44 3471397
T8 Cush flow from Investing actisiiics
Purelisise af property. plasl and squlpomant {4.90) ]
et gaehy Ty Syvem Iy estingg aciiviiles_ (41,90 (3060
% Cash Maw from Anancing actlvilbes
Procsdu{ Pavmacnt)f hosrowings (1.20%5.63) (1,760 24)
Dhividonsl pukd (L2124 (L2748
Jnlercat il (943,35} (1,094,681}
Mee cash Bow from Mmncing sctivities (3,361.069) (-4, 0. 61K
Ml incrense (decoanse) in casl and ensh sijaivaleris (A + 13 = ©) 127,85 {598,220
Consh el ensh exquivilonis il il bopisming of the yunr ZR04.55 1,491 59
M{: ol the el of ihe year 3,022,480 1,B93,67
Lamponcnts of cash anal gush_
Cush in lmnd
Halanees with sulsduled banks:
Chi curraal sceraiiby 20,93 216
Ot dugmit weeonmity 300147 247439
Cual and cash equlvadents s caxh Tow s } J AL 894,55
Cash fow seatemont las boen propnred undsr indirect motod =2 ot @ Tnd AS-T
Sue decaipriying modes ol financial slewments
Muvemend For the yenr ended 31 March, 2025
Partboulirs Batance os on 38 Morels, | Amount boaked iluring | Payment made et dhe | Balnoee as on 31 March,
2024 e Yoo year 25
Earest on Dorrowiigs LRS00 TR0 3. 20 3370
Hak: Charpes : [ ik :
Cument Brmowines 1.20%.62 - - 120562
Dividesd Pasvnwanl to Sharelwlders . 1.212,74 =L2TLT4
Mut-Cairtl Domowinjes 7,5146.53 . =1, 25,62 _6,630.91
Muvernent for the yenr ended 31 Mareh, 2024
Parthcubsr Talance os on 31 Mavel, | Ameunst boaked taring | Poyment mnde doring the | Ralinee as on 31 March,
3 the yeur yoar R
Carrand Hoavow ings mchuding inlr 1.4949,40 286,30 =1,0595.43 1, 371
Britk Churues : 0,18 0.1k -
|Divident] Prvanont 1o Shorahobders . L2123 =L3137a =
Han-Curreiil Barmewings 9,59 77 - -1.704.24 7.836.53

Crsht Flow rom Opernting aclivity is pro
any dhalimaly ior tccrusls of posl or fiturs
It may also ba wosed dsat Uwera f oo

umEgh

pared ny por the ondineet ot whicrely profi o loss s ndjused for e affets of tusoctions al' a nemensh nahare,
eperntiieg cail recaipts or paymeits, and fhos of fncome or axpense sssocianed with ivesting o Arancing e hws,

resuired in the shove Cash fbow Stotement,
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CROSS BORDER IMOWIR TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
Jril FLOOR, NIRYAT BEEAWAN, OFPOSTTE R&R IIOSFITAL
RADNTULA AR MARG, NEW DELHI - 11057

POTES FORMING PART OF FINANCTIAL STATEMENT

Atatement af Clunges In Equity for the Yeur cided Bhat Murch 2025

A Eguity Share Clapléal (¥ it dakia)
Ao nl beginingg of the yesr (1] Apnl 7024 A HSSY
Chanpes darmp fia vaar nan
s at end of s year (31 March 207 i) 4 85095
Previmm year [
s al bogiig of the year (111 Apeil 2023) A H50a8
Changes doring i vaar LU0
An ad enid of ife vear (31 Mn_rLILED!d} 485095
Ik, Chther Bquity £ I k)
Diber
ciprehen
Reserve nmil Swrphies alve Incame
Equiy
Inatrupment
2 thraugh
Bl el ather
Securithes | Redemplion |1 ¢ |Genernl | Retained | comprehen
Purilculirs Prembum | Reserve Reserve  |Reserve Eardngs  |slve ncomse Tutul
A8 0 01 Aprid 2024 ) = 4K HY = RN RE] - ABTT13
Profit for the vear * - - - 211198 - 211198
Oiber Comprehensive Ingome . - - ' . - -
Adjustments durdmg the vear . = - . = = =
Translior bo Solf Tsurume Resoroe L a 24,40 - 48,40 -
Trnnslur Brom Self busimnce Reswerne - - : - - -
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CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

I.  Corpurate information

The Company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at 3" Floor, Niryat Bhawan, Opposite Army Hospital Research and Referral Hospital, Rao
Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi - 110057,

The Company is principally engaged in establishment, operation & maintenance and transfer of
Indian Portion of Indo=Nepal Cross Border Transmission Line from Muzaffarpur to Dhalkebar,

2, Material accounting policy information
2.1 Basis of preparation

i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act), the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant provisions of the
Act,

For all the periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared
its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies ( Accounts) Rules,
<014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first which the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS

i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

® Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments)

i} Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or 2), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency, and all amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs and two
decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise

iv) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilitics, revenue, expenses & cash flows during the reporting
period. Although, such estimaies and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis
taking into account all available information, actual results could differ from these estimates
The estimares and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future years,

v) Financials approval in Board
The Original financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 were approved by the
Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 29th August, 2025,
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2.2 Correction of Error in accordance with "IND AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors”,

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, the Company identified an omission
relating to the recognition of Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) in accordance with "Ind AS
I2 - Income Taxes". The error pertains to the non-recognition of DTL in earlier periods
subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2017.

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS § = Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, the Company has corrected this prior period error by restating the
comparative information for the affected periods, As the error affects periods prior to the
earliest comparative presented, a third balance sheet as at April 1, 2023 has been presented in
these financial statements.

The correction has resulted in a charge of T 3491.97 lakhs to the Retained Eamings as at April
1, 2023, The impact of this adjustment along with subsequent impact is as follows:

As on April 1, 2023
Increase in Deferred Tax Liability: ¥ 349197 lakhs
Decrease in Retained Earnings: 2 3491,97 lakhs

As on March 31, 2024

Increase in Deferred Tax Liability: ¥ 297507 lakhs

Decrease in Retained Earings: T 2975.07 lakhs (2 3491.97 lakhs - 2 516.90 lakhs)
Decrease in Deferred Tax Expense: 2 516,90 lakhs

The depreciation has also been recomputed retrospectively in accordance with the
applicable requirements of Tnd AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment. The impact of
this adjustment has been incorporated in the restated financial statements.

The correction has resulted in a charge of T1.17 lakhs to the Retained Earnings as at April 1,
2023. The impact of this adjustment along with subsequent impact is as follows:

As om April 1, 2023
Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment: 1,17 lakhs
Increase in Retained Eamings: T1,17 lakhs

As on March 31, 2024

Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment: 21,01 lakhs

Increase in Retained Eamings: 71.01 lakhs (21,17 Lakhs - 20.16 Lalkhs)
Increase in Depreciation: 20,16 lakhs

Certain current tax assets related to the financial year 2020-21 were previously classified
under current assets and other assets / liability Against which necessary adjustments were
not being made. These adjustments have now been incorporated into the restated
financial statements, with the resulting impact recognized as at April 1, 2023.

The effect of the adjustment as at April 01, 2023 is summarized below:
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As on April 1, 2023

Decrease in Other Current Assets: £7.06 lakhs
Increase in Other Current Liability: ¥0.70 lakhs
Others: ¥0.59 Jakhs

Decrease in Retained Earnings: 28 35 lakhs

2.3 Summary of Material accounting policy information

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non- current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
*  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 3
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,
Aliability iz current when:

* ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Itis due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

* Thereisnounconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period,

All other Liabilities are classified as Non-current,
Deferred Tax Asseis and Liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cyele.

Foreign Currencies
The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences ari sing on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss with the exception of the following:

*  Tax charges and credits attributable 1o exchan e differences oo those monetary items
are also recorded in OCT.
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C.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary items
measured at {air value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined, The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., anslation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCT or profit or loss, respectively),

Fair value measurement

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants aet in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by vsing the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.,

Revenue recognition

As per IND AS 115 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when
the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties coilected on behalf of the government.

Revenue relating to construction services under a service concession arrangement is recognised
based on stage of completion of the work performed, Operation or service revenue is recognised
in the period in which the services are provided by the Company. When the Company provides
more than one service in a service concession arrangement, the consideration received is
allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services delivered.

The ransmission system incentive / disincentive is accounted for based on certification of
availability by the respective Regional Power Committees and in accordance with the CERC
tariff regulations.

Surcharge recoverable from trade receivable are recognised when no significant uncertainty as
to measurability and collectability exists,

Scraps are accounted for as and when sold,

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive payment is established.

Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)

The Company has entered into Service Concession Arrangements (SCAs) for the construction,
operation, and maintenance of infrastructure facilities. Under the terms of the SCAs. the Com pany
acts as a service provider and recognises revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers for the construction, upgrade, and operation services rendered.

4
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L.

Where the Company has an contractual ri ght to receive cash or another financial asset from the
grantor, such rights are recognised and classified as “Financial Assets” and disclosed as
“Receivable against Service Concession Arrangements”

The financial asset has initially recognised at Amortised Cost in accordance with IND AS 109
and consisting of Project Cost incurred which reflects the fair value and subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Corresponding interest income is recognised over the
concession period.

Receivable Under SCA

Under a SCA, where the Company has acquired contractual rights to receive specified
determinable amounts (Annuity) for use of an asset, such amounts are recognised as “Financial
Assets” and are disclosed as “Receivable against Service Concession Arrangements”, The value
of a Financial Asset covered under a SCA includes the cost of construction services rendered,
which is determined at the inception of the contract and reflects the fair value of the constructed
assel. The cash flow from a Financial Asset commences from the Commercial Operation Date
as certified by the granting authority for the SCA. The cash flow from a Financial Asser js
accounted using the effective interest rate method. The intrinsic interest element in each Annuity
receipt is accounted as finance income and the balance amount (excluding the amount received
for operation and maintenance of the cost of agset) is accounted towards recovery of dues from
the “Receivable against Service Concession Arrangements”,

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured a1 the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying ransaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purpases at the reporting dare,

Dieferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except, when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tux assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settied or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date,
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h. Property, plant and equipment

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of Property,
Plant and Equipment as per previous GAAP 1o be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101,

Property. Plant and Equipment are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction
including any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and
its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use are derecognized.

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation / amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant pant initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Spares parts whose cost is 2.5,000/- and above, standby equipment and servicing equipment
which meets the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized,

Depreciation/Amortization
Property, Plant & Equipment

Depreciation/Amortisation an the items of property, plant and equipment and intangibles assets
are provided on straight line method based on the useful life specified in Schedule I1 of Companies
Act, 2013,

Property. Plant and Equipment costing T, 5,000/~ or less, are fully depreciated in the year of
acquisition,

Depreciation is recognised based on the cost of assets less their residual value of 5% over their
useful life,

Intangibles

Cost of software capitalized as intangible assets is amortized using straight line method over the
period of legal right to use or 4 years, whichever is less with nil residual value

Intangible assets

On the date of wansition 10 Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of Intangible
Assets as per previous GAAP to be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101, Intangible assets acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
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incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is charged on
pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for useldisposed.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year-end and are accounted for as change in accounting estimates in accordance with
Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an psset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 1o
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Leases

The determination of whether an arra ngement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease, The arrangement is, or containg, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right o use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic henefite
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virwally certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement

If the effeet of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recogmised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
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to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, Information on contingent liability
is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Company contribution paid/payable during the year to defined pension contribution scheme and
provident fund scheme is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The liabilities for compensated absences, leave encashment, post -retirement medical benefits,
settlement allowance and long service awards to employees are ascertained annually on actuarial
valuation at the year end and provided for in the books of accounts.

Short term employee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which the related services are rendered,

Re-measurements pertaining to defined benefit obligations are recognised immediately in the other
comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measirement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular

way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.¢., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent meusurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories;

#  Debt instruments at amortized cost
= Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

»  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL)

# Equily instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instrivments at amortized cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

~ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

» Conractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
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This category is the most relevant to the Company, After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subscquently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
aceuisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairmenr are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument aft FVTOCT
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following eriteria are met:

¥ The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

= The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the EVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asser,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L,
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

refi instrument ot FVTPL

EVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does nat meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as F VTQCI, is classified as at FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debi instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at EVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L,

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity investments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in & business
combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other Uity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There is no recyeling
of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured ar fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L,
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily dereco gnised (i.e. removed from the Company's consolidated
balance sheet) when:

~ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 1o a third party
under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and either the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has enterad
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Centinuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial linbilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through
profit or loss, loans  and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below-

Financial abilities at fair value throngh profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable 1o changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other cha nges
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has
not designated any financisl liability ag at fair value thraugh profit and loss statement,

Loans and borrowings

This is the category mast relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR. method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecopnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financiol inxtruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consclidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable tegal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
linbilities simultaneously.

m  Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories

Cash generating units as defined in Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ are identified at the Balance
Sheet date. At the date of Balance Sheet, if there are indications of impairment and the carrying
amount of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use), an impairment loss is recognized. The carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment losz in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is
reversed to the extent of increase in the estimate of recoverable amount Post impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining
useful life.
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q. Cash and cash equivalents

T

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
sharcholders and weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the year,

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding
during the vear, except where the recult would be anti-dilutive,

Cash Flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method in compliance with INDAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flow,

Share Capital and Other Equity

Company has created Company Self Insurance Reserve {@0.2% of Gross Block based on the Board
Resolution passed on March 19, 2024 effective from F.Y. 2023-24 and according to management
Gross Block is considered equivalent to Total Project Cost. Self- Insurance Reserve has created to
mitigate future losses from un-insured risks and for taking care of contingencies in future by
procurement of towers and other transmission line materials including strengthening of towers,
The Reserve created as above is shown as "Self-Insurance Reserve” under 'Other Equity'

This space has been intentivnally left blcnik
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SOTES FORMING PART OF FINARCLAL STATEMENT
Praperty, Plast and Eyudpses {8 i lakha)
Mot 3 A ¢ Tangibde Avwiy
Thata Pruceslig Fumnilure & DM Equipean) Office Tedal
eapuiuneal Fixtures opreciated in ¥ Kaguipnscmrs
A ummpasiar) yeurs Alrpreciateil In 5
!-'_E‘dﬂ
Girwrsy. Hbock
Axal | April 2023 450 - L - 550
Adlitions 148 - 130 - L
Dispoanls i - 5 - -
An ot Mareh 31, 2023 7 - .30 + 137
Auditioms b b %4 N 0,69 LI
Drspainsls & = . - &
Aol lnrcly 31, 2024 R IsE] 1.74 K] [
Adlditinns 1% 1. TH [ a7 4.9
Dlepsals 068 . . - [0S
A al March 31, 2028 A A F il (&11] 15, gﬂ_
Avczwmislalesl Deprediaiiun
Az an L Apeil 2022 a6 - (852 - bE )
Charge for the year L7 = E]] - 2417
Uspuanls o . . 5 ¥
Awowl Moreh 31, 2023 RN - LM = 4,64
Charga for the yes 164 oz 0.2 ooT 2.0
hegaals . = - . -
Aol Mareh 31, 2004 548 Ik a2 L2 ooy .64
Charge for Uhe yeay 166 [ L] 0.4l 1] 46
Dlispesals 051 = - . 51
Aol March 31, 2025 ffil 021 82 07 263
Nored Do
A ot March 30, 2023 218 - 047 - 7
A ur Mureh 31, 2024 4 LEH I.Gd 0,62 430
A ot Morch 31, 2425 .84 (K] UL L9 i, 51
Nofe 3B Lugumglble Asaeis (% in lakcha)
Lisonsad sodtn Tartad
G Klnck
As a1 Aprl 2032 36 30
Sildikooa - -
Thapreals - =
Aswl Morch 31, 2023 036 0,34
Additions - -
I‘Jhpxl]l - .
At Merch 31, 2024 L) i34
Adilitdnng = “
Diujiosalks - 5
Al Mared 30, 2025 36 0,36
Scwnuslaied Dheprrociution
Al 1 el 2022 14 0ld
Charge For the year fan LA
Diupasals ) -
Asat Mareh 31, 2023 023 823
Charge For the year 0,06 nan
Daposals - -
Asoal March 31, 2024 4.30 150
Cherga lor the yuesr 045 a3
Dvpuals - P
Ax &l March 31, 2025 034 .34
XNel Block
As ml March 31, 2023 il 0.3
Ax sl Morch 31, 2024 00T .oy

Aswl Mureh 31, 2025 ni Aoz




CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
Jnd FLOOR, NIRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSITE R&R HOSPITAL
RAOQTULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT
I Laikhs In Lukhs In Lakhs
As ut Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 0 April 2023
Note 4 A : Service conpession urrnmgements - Transmisclon Line
Non-corvent
Serviee con ion e 1y I: 13098891 15,000,652 17031 40
Tertnl 13958891 15000062 17,031, 40
Current
Service concession nrmingements 115340 | 33460 123347
Total 1,153.00 133460 1,233.47
Mue
Caleulation of servies cansession nrmipements (SCA) recelvable gzt 11,03.2005
Opeing SCA receivable
Current {recsivids in one vear) JAs60 123347 121844
Kon eurrent {ounimlalive receivable after ane wenrd 1500062 1703140 18.264 8%
Total upening SCA veceivable 16,335.22 18,264.87 19,483,532
Add: finnnee income on STA receivible 1,924 8% 209486 22E0.RD
Lesai received from NEA ngaingt SCA reesivitble during tha ;
linaneial yenr 2134-25 341220 33103 145924
Lisasiz Anacdn tranntlrmes) - GO6. 18 '
Tatal closing SCA receivable 15.141.90 16,335,223 18,264.87
Current {reseivable b ane year) LISk 133460 125347
Man eitrent eummulntive reasivable afier one vens) | 398891 15.010),62 17031 441
Thie fair vnhoe of ather non-eurment finaneinl assele in nol intenally diftersnt from the enrrving valus prasont
(¥ in lakhs)
Note 4 B : Service concession nrenngements - 2 Bays
Nun-coirent
SErvice eoncession amangemen s 76597 #1647 Kb 25
Tatnl ] Bl6dT [T
Current
Hurvive concession Lmngomenty 5ib,34 49.67 49,20
Totul Si.34 967 A2
Note
Catluilntion of ssrvies eoneesston arm nits (SCA) reeervieble as ol 3003 2005
Opeing SCA receivalie
Current {reseivable in ong venr) 49,67 48,30 4800
Mo current (cumulative seceivable atber one year) 1647 H66,25 915.3]
Total apening SCA pecvivable Bt 14 21544 HaS31
Akl oo ineoiie o SCA resivable 1L 17,74 124.54
#ﬁ: ;ﬂl\-ﬁl froim MEA agninst SCA recelvitle during tha venr 6L 166,54 1724
Tuovtul chosing SCA receivahle RI6.33 66,24 D15.44
Currensd [receivabie i one year) 5034 4967 49.200
Mo wsement {ewmnuintive recsivibibe o fler one yery T65.97 #1647 Ai6.235
The thir value of' olher non-ourrent financial assets in not muterially ditfierent i e carrying value frrescn
(¥ in Inkhs)
Marte 5: Dieferved Tax Liubility £ { Auset)
Unsecured, eungidered gnod /. Exwiliin
() Deferred tux Lisbility RIEE &) Jaos 153730
(i} e MAT Credit 305273 174603 246505
Totul (4. 14} [} LAG218
Mote 6: Other non corrent nssots (¥ lukhs)
Loans and udvances
Unsecuriead, considered poad
(1) Security and ouher depopits 573 573 . #61
Tuinl 573 573 261




CROSS BORDFR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
And FLOOK, KERYAT BUAW AR, OPPOSTIE RE HOSEITAL
RACH TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELIIE - 110857

MOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In Laihs I Linkhs Il_l‘lﬂm.
Moie T; Trade receivsbles Ad ol Al An i
hlnreh 31, 2025 Mlarch 31, 2034 Agril 01, I023
Ussitured, comiored pod
Unbilbed trmamision seriee smsne a0 3504l Anl4n
Talal JEDE X503 LRI B

Mote Tt Trade Wecelvablos Ageiny

{2 in Laldu)
Craistamiling For fallowimp puriods from due date e payiest ]
i Mt Bued Publilod | Lows thas o Bl
' than M
o i ‘:ml': Gowmontls -1 year | 3Zwear | 33 your "‘;L:"
As ai Jiat Mureh 3028
113 Linlispuited Trade Reveivable - vonsiiloned goed 6.5 - = : M
[ii!lbdﬂplﬂiTlHﬂledm-mm:hhwﬂpﬂHu-l
imrise in erodil mek = : - - . B
{1k Unadiopuicd Trade Rueceivable - crodit impairs 5 - = n i .
Giv) Disputed Trade Roceivabde - consierul good 2 = = - I T
(v Dt Tradu Beurivablo - which lavg significant F ;
inreass i eredlt Hak ] * .
(v} Dpated Trade Reecivalile - ciodit mmpaired " i ¥ - - .
Totsl IT6.25 - - - ITEAS
(% in lakha)
Chuistamiling for Tlowing perisds Mo doe dote for paynscnl
Partlculiss Tl
Hlll;-n'l'nhllhl Toess tbian 6 Guents-1yenr | ldyear | 2dyear | Morothand
evenme mmnihy yoars
As al Jst March 2004
(i) Undispudaal Trads Recetvable - conidered goud 3043 - 32548
(i} Undiapiibisd ‘Travde Recanahlo - which Iz magnificant ~ i . oy -
inreis i eradi risk 2
(i) Uniliaprted Trde Receivable - erodit jmpained - . T "
(i) Dvgpinted Trade Recaivable - comdilersd good = . ] {
v} Dimpotod Trsde Recelvalibe « which hive aigialicsn : = :
anreane im emedit risk 2
(v} Dispusted Trade Heocivable - erodit impaived - - N -
Taial I as - - 259458
(% in Lakiln)
Cruist amiling for foSawing periods frem dus date fr paysen)
Particilirs Tedal
Mot Iheef Unshilled Toess thimn f Mlore fham 3
B pristenel & mumihs - L yeer 1=2 year 1-3 yenr i
A al I Spril 2023
i) Undisputed Tz Receiveble - considenad gond 9143 - - - - 391,48
Hip Unddsputel Trade Receivabde - which have sapnificant . . = : i R
Inpease in it risk
(031 Uviadsspited Trade Reccivable = credil impas B . y = ;
(iv') Dhagrated Trade Receivable - consadered oo % = i 0 -
ivh Disgurtedd Trade Recelvable - wlicl hive significenl = B - : ;
inreass imeredin risk
i) Divgisted Trade Receivahle « cradit impainod i e = = - B
Tl .48 - - - - M




CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COM PANY LIMITED

3rd FLOOR, NIRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSITE R&R HOSPITAL
RAO TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEM ENT

In Lakhs In Lakhs In Lakhs
As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2624 . 01 April 2023
Note 8 : Cash and cash equivalenis
Balanee with banks
In current account 20.93 2,16 40185
In term deposit account 3.001.47 287439 345104
Total 3.,022.40 2,894,855 3,491.89
Note 8 A : Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents
Bank FD more than 3 months 7.99 7.99 74909
Total T.99 7.99 7.99
Note 9: Other curvent linancial assels
Deposit powergrid under O&M of transmission system 50.00 5000 50,00
Total 50.00 50.00 S0.00
Mote: The Company has given the O&M advance in nature of Emergency fund at site of Bihar in FY 2016
Note 10: Other current assetls
B: Unsecured, considered good
(i} Advance tax, including taxes deducted at source | 15.34 072
{nel of provision for Laxation)
(i) Prepaid expenses (insurance) 0,09 0.59 .59
Total 0.09 15.93 1.31
.‘:"-: |1 1
=5 ey !
‘i}: iy 4
el ,



CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
Jrd FLOOR, NTRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSITE R&R HOSPITAL
RAD TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In Lakhs In Lakhs T Lkl
As ut As at Axat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 0 April 2023
Mute 1 LTA: Equily share copital
Authorlud shures
Eequity shares of Rs 10 ench 7,300.00 750000 75040000
Tuul 7.500.00 TS500.00 T 504, (i
Tsmud, subweribod and fully paid up
Equity ghares of K, 10 each [ully paid 4. 830,95 4 850.95 4. 85095
Total 4.850.95 4, 850.95 4,850.95
Reconciliation of shares outetanding at the beginning and at the end for the reporting year
Equity shares
31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024 01 April 2023
M, {In Lukhs) Ma, {In Lakis) Ma, {1n Lalhs)
A1 ihe beginning of the vear 48509512 485095 | a.R309.512 4.B50.95 | 48509512 485095
Izsued during the yeus - = . - =
Outstumding ut the cnd of the year 4,45,0,512 485095 | 485,090,512 4,850.95 | AHS09.512 4 H30.95

Terme rights attached to Equity shines:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of s, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entithed to one vobe per shure. The Commpuny declures and pays
dividends in Indinn rupees

It e event of Teuidition of e Comgany, e holders of equily shones will be entitled to receive remmirning assets of L Couwpany, alter distibution ol gl preferential wsounts, The
dhistribiation will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Details of shureholders hilding more thun 5% shures / shores held by Promoters In the Company

31 Murch 2025 31 Muarch 2024 01 April 2023
%% holding in the % holding in the %o holding In
Dl oF e Shirchilor NG eluss Mo clnss Mo, the closs
Equity shures of Rs, 10 each fully paid
L&FS Encrpy Development Company Linitad - - 1,8433615 JRO0% 18433615 38.00%
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 2.03.42,608 41.94% 1,26,12.473 26000 1.26,12.473 26.00%
BIVHN Lhmited and js ponmices 203,42, 700 41, 94% 1.26,12.473 26008 1,26,12.473 26.00%

Mispal Electricily Aulhosily 7824114 16.12% 48,530,951 1000% 48,350,951 10.00%:




Share halding of the Promoter
As ut March 31, 2025

. Mo of shares at o change
Class of Equlty Share Promater Name T of shares at the  Change during s i s Yo of otal during the
beginning of the vear the veur wha rey
year year
Fully Paid-up equity shares of Rs. Li- ench IL&F8 Energy
Dievelopment 184336015  (1,84.33.615) = (LD 1CHL.00%
Coanpuiny Limited
Power Grd
Corporulion of 1,26,12,473 T7.30,225 20042698 41.94% 13.94%,
Indin Limited
Y Eimitd 1.26,12,473 77.30,227 ZO3ALT00 41.94% 15 949
and ity neminees
Mepnl Electricity
Authority 48 50,051 20,73, 163 7824114 16.12% G.12%
Share holding of the Promoter
Asut March 31, 2024
M of shares ot %o change
y Mo of shares of the  Change during e uf totnl
Class of Equity Share Promater Mome ning of the year  the year the end of the Sl during the
E{ ::.'mr yeur
'_Fulilyplll&-np equity shares of Bs, 10/- each IL&FS Enerpy
Development Ld,33,615 # LE4I36IS 38.00% 0.000%
Compuny [imited
Porwer Grd
Corpomiion of 1,26,12. 472 - 126,012,473 26.00% D00
Irvddn Licrvitel
SIVN Limited 1,26,12.473 - 12602473 26.00% 0.00%
anl jis ponninees
Mepal FElectricily = i : e ) O,
Authrily 44,550,951 ESA5] 1 0.

Mote: ns per records of the Company, the abave sharcholding represents legnl ownership of shares,




Note 11B: Other equity In Lakhs In Lukhs In Lalchs

Reserves and surplus. As ot A ut Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Retuined Earnings &=
Balance as per Tast fimancin] stdemonts 362873 4,750 80 £.238.95
Profit Loss) for the yor 3,111.08 2.130.07 :
Adjustment
Chisecount of DTADTL - - (3,491,597
On secowmt of Fixed Assets - - 117
Un sceount of Other Adjustments - - 18.33)
Total 7.740.71 6,8H9,87 4,750.80
Lgss:
Dividand pavment 1.212.74 121274 .
B (el in e stitensent of profil sl loss qa) 652706 567713 4,730.80
Company Sell Insurance Ruserve®™ (b} 4% B0 A% 40 -
Retnined Exrnings (u) - (b) 6,527.56 3,628.73 4, 750,80

Company Self Insurnnce Reserve

Opening: 484t . ”
Addition during the yeor 48,40 A8.40 -
Closing 96,80 43,40 -
Tutul Othor Equity 6,576, 34 567713 4,759,580
T tma— e — — s —_——

** Company has created Company Self Insuranee Reserve A0, 2% i Gross Block basod on the Bonsd Resotution poased of March 19, 2034 elfective from F.Y, 202124 and
uecording lo maragement Gross Flock is considered equivalent 1o Total Project Cost

Lo Lukhs I Liskhs In Lakhs
Mote 12 A : Long term horrowings
(@) Bong teon Ioan from Ninancial institution 6,030,91 7.436.51 9.396,77
f,630,9] THRIGAN % 306,77
The nbiwve smount inclades
Seetired borrowings G,630.91] TA3G.53 9.596.77
Tutal 6,630.91 743653 9.596.77

Note

i ATl lang lerm borrowings are sanclioned through Power Finunee Corparntion of Tndia Lid. (PFC) far smount of R 20,7094 lakhs, and dishursed Rs. 19,137 735 lakks a5 ol 31
barch, 2018

i, Long term borrowings sne seewnsd by frsl peard pussy ehangs on ol fixed sesets of (e Conrpany nelustiog lease bold rghts of the Land, hypothesadon of ol movable ussels, first
charge on corment assols of the Compamy mneliding book debis and stock.

i [nferest rate applicable s notificd by PFC Lo, 12% 101 1.25% and with 25 b rebote: (on timely paymentsy, From 1 7th Nowvember 2006, the effective mie of interest towand fosn
foan is 9.95% par { net of 0.25% rebote). Wel 15th April 2018 the effective miw of inlerest loward e Toun s 9.75% g { el of 2 3% rebate). Wil 30-07-2024 the inferest chsrged
by PEC iz on moathly basis from the month of Ost 2024 and eflestive ROL is 9.2 5% frer ANDLUIL

iv, The lorn sholl be repayable in 60 equol quarierty insullments, the frst repaymint stirted from (145 Sept 2006 ond repayment of Re. 11,301,200 lakks (Rs.291,98%2 Iikhs and
R 309089728 lukhs and Re. 301 .41%4 kikhs) aloag with the principal repayment of oan for Rs, 534.620 ks in Mov 2023, has boen rupaved 1o PFC Gl dale opgoist the leem lom,

V. Rs 120562/ lakhs ia povehle s repoyment for the FY 2025-26 and therefore recinssificd at short term bamawing



CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COAMPANY LINITED
Jid FLOOR, NIRVAT BHAWAN, OPFPOSITE B4R HEISPITAL
RAD TIULA R MARE, NEW DELI - 114msT

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In Lakhs I Linlidis I Lk
st A oat Ax
31 Marely 2025 S March 2024 01 Apedl 2023
Mote 128;: Trade Puyshbe
('} Sy Croditors
= Total catstamibing dues of micro & small e Prises - - -
= Total matstanding dises of ather than wjcrn &
amnll emtorpeims i 7852 *
Tutnl 36,48 TE52 -
— e -
3 March 2025 [T 2 for falboning periods From due dade of Payiment ]
Particular Less thun | yenr [1-2 vears | 3-3 years | Mure ihan 3 vears| Tetal =
| (i) MSAE 5 - - 5 =
(1) Dhispurted dues - XIS E - - - . -
| il Gitery 36,48 P - - Ty
i) IMspamed dises - Othery - - - - &
Tutal 5643 | - - - Mo 48
31 March 2024 Orutstunading For fllawing periods from dar date of Puyment
Particulnr Less tham 1 year [1-2 yeurs [ 33 venrs | Nare thien 3 yeurs| Tidal
(1) MSME = - - - 3t
(1) Disuated dues - MSAE - - - =]
| (i) Others 7552 - - - 1852
v Dlspueed duses = Chilvers = - = = =
Tutal TRE2 - - - 7852
1 Apeil 2023 (e L for Fullowheg periods fram doe date ol Payment
| Parthoulur Leas than 1 year [1-2 yewrs [3-3 yenrs | Nore thas 3 years] Tofal
(i MSME - - - - -
(1 Dispasied dues = MSME - - - - = |
| (10} {pehers - - - - 5
| {1y} [Mspuated dues - Othcrs = = v = .
Tl - - = - -
Mote 13 1 Barrowings
8 Cumvent mataritos of' I e hoyTiwangs 1.20% 62 1,205 62 | I 57
Tonul 1208 62 1, 205,62 L1987
Nuote 04 : Ortlhwr carrent Mnascial liabilbiles
() Tinerout acorued but wot g o Brorowingy 1.7 185 (9 2941
(b Payalke At eapital expenditune 2253 nn .97
1] Bennharseament m Fenglovee i i &H =
i) Fxpenses Pavabibs 622 - -
Tistal [N 20850 14230
Note 15 @her curvest Tinbilifies
Lk Advaiee Income Rece sl
113 Adviinee daposit from BSETCT, .59 654 HEd
(i) Prepaid incane B 211 Fod
(b Stautody duen pavabibe (T8, I, [0 wle) 518 264 LR
Tostul 11,77 1134 HILOT
Note 16: Provisions
Non € nrrent
Tramasive fim emploaee hanedi
= Coanpuisitod shacices LRI @350 oo
Tutal [T 9 5] .
{arrent
(nk tperaimy ehpense prvabl - - 105746
Al Prvasion Tor emplovo bunetii
= UCrsmpenenied nheonces oy L] il 59
Tatal (] 090 1K 35
Nete 16A: Current Tax |labilities
Provisgan for s el of adbvine ta) S doa: ~RESy =5
Tatnl 46,93 = .




CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
3rd FLOOR, NIRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSITE R&R HOSPITAL
RAO TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In Lakhs In Lakhs
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note 17: Revenue from sperations
Transmission Business
Transmission service charges TR4.76 76446
Other operating income 2.11 Y26
Total A 786.87 773,72
Other Operating Revenue
!l?:lm ;T;Tﬁi::*mm concession arrangements 1.924.89 2,098 86
Interest income on service concession arrangements 2 Bays* 111.30 117.62
Tolal B 2,036.19 2,216.48
Total{A+B) 21,823.06 2,990.20
* Refer note no 4- service concession arrangements for detail caleulation
Notes
Total amount received from NEA during the current year 2024-25
Annual TSC on normative basis 3,744 18 3,943 80
Annual TSC on Incentive basig 197,06 207,57
Gross amount 3,941.24 4,151.37
Less: rebate @) 2% TH.82 23.03
TSC charged and booked in FY 24-25 11.42 -
Net amount 387384 4,065,34
Net amount received after adjustment 3,873.84 4,068,34

Net amount received from NEA
Less: amount recived for construction activity and adjusted with SCA receivable

Return on equity (posl tax) T43.95 173,35
Transmission majoration factor (Post tax) 119,99 124.73
MAT 182.90 100,13
Interest on loan capital #45.46 LiN&63
Depreciation 1,225.49 1,225 49
Sub total 3,118.19 3,332.33
Transmission service income TEE.65 736,010

Total amount received from NEA during the curvent yenr 2024-25

2 Bays Normalive 184,40 18941
2 Bays Incentive @71 9,97
Gross amount 194,11 199.38
Less: rebate (@ 2% 388 394
Met amount 190.23 195,39
Net amount received from NEA 190.23 195.39
Less: amount recived for construction activity and adjusted with SCA receivable
Return on equity: (post tax) 30,69 30,69
Transmission majoration facior (Post tax) 4,95 4.95
MAT 7.55 7.55
Interest on loan capital 65,60 71.48
Diepreciation 52.27 5227
Sub total 161.12 166,94

Transmission service income 29,11 18.45




In Lakhs In Lakhs
Note 18: Other income

Interest on Revolving Fund - 2.15
Interest on Compensation advanes - .21
Mise Income - Others * 3895 2632
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 0.01
Interest on bank deposits 173.53 18445

Total 21248 213.14

* Misc Income others comprise the rebate pavment received [rom Power finance corporation. Sale of scrap
materinl 1o Savitri traders at site and rebate income received from ERLDC,

MNote 19: Employee benefits expenses

Salary 92,68 81.98
Contribution to provident and other funds 3.39 3.37
Staff welfare expenses 3.76 4.00

Total 9983 59.35

Mote 20: Finance cost

Interest expense on term loan 791,95 GRG.30
Bank & Other charges 0.04 018
Total T792.00 986.48

Note 21: Transmission, administration and other expenses

Audit lee 0.40 0.40
Advertismment & publicity expenses ‘ 236
Business promotion expenses / participation expenses - |4 84
Corporate social responsibility expenses 33.15 32.77
License & flling fees 201,94 6.28
Insurance expenses director / employees - .94
Legal and professional expenses 139,71 17777
Office maintenance expenses 16.00 14,78
Operation and maintenance ol ransmission system 117.46 18917
Printing and stationery 5.47 7.15
Rent, rates and taxes 2753 2619
Repair & maintenance olfice sysiam .44 (.95
Travel and convevance 5.94 4,68
Tree and crop compensation after construction - 241
Miscellanzous expenses 318 377
Vehicle hiting expenses 19.91 1996
Leave & Aculurial Expenses - 380

Total 390,93 512.26




CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
3rd FLOOR, NIRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSITE R&R HOSPITAL
RAO TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

COMPUTATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Note no 22: Calculation of current tax for the FY 2024-25

In respect of profits from transmission services, the Company is claiming the deduction under Section 80-1A,
which began in FY 2018-19 and is set to continue for the full ten-year duration as stipulated by the Income Tax
Act, 1961.The same has been applied on 26th November, 2019 for FY 2018-19 and onwards, Due to this the

company is paying tax under the provisions of MAT u/s 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961

In Lakhs In Lakhs
Caleulation of income tax for the FY 2024-25 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Book profit for the assessment year 2024-25 1,750.26 1,613.17
Total book profit for calculation of MAT for the FY 2024-25 1,750.26 1,613.17
MAT @ 15% 262.54 24200
Surcharge @ 12 % 31.50 29,04
HEC @4 % 11.76 10.84
Total tax for the FY 2024-25 305.79 281.88




CROSS BORDER POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED
3rd FLOOR, NIRYAT BHAWAN, OPPOSITE R&R HOSPITAL
RAO TULA RAM MARG, NEW DELHI - 110057

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note 13
There are no micro, small and medium enterprise, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45
days as at the date of the financial statements, This infarmation is required to be disclosed under the micro, small and medium

enterprise development act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company,

Note 24

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on realisation of
current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less then the amount at which they are
stated in the flnancial statement,

Note 25 :Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liability in respect of the following pending litigation has not been recognized, as the likelihood of any outflow of
resources is assessed to be remote, As per the requirements of Ind AS 37, such contingent liability is recognized unless the
possibility of an outflow of economic benefits is remote.

S.Mo_ | Name of petitioner nuture of coseMocatlon of court! case no Status ak on 31 March 2025

The patitioners have recelved thelr cheques on 02.02.2016 and made thelr Panding for hearlng. Date of next hearing is
signature and total amount of s, 35,40,180/- as per the rate of As. 1,50,000/- per|08.04,2025,

decimal. This rate is given by circle officer, Mushahari in the case Mo,
CWIC19374/2014 at High Court Patna.

The petitoners are not satisfied the above rate so they are filled a new case in Civil
Court, Muzaffarpur in 2017,

The Clalm of the petitionars Is that the clrele rate of the land should be Rs.
3,00,000/- per decimel,

Bauad on the patition, the petitioners are seeking Rs, 35,40, 1A0/-,

Note 26 : Auditor's remuneration

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In Lakhs In Lakhs
Auditors remuneration
For Audit Fees (excluding tax) 0.40 0.40
Tax Audit & Other Services 0.95 .98

Total 1.35 1,38
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

POSITE RécR HOSPTTAL

Mote 27: Related Purty Disclosures

I

As per the Indien Accountine Stndard on ‘Rilated Party Iisc

tosures’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountmnts of Indi, the

related partics with whom the compasies s mode the transsstions during the period arc s follows -

i Joint Venture Companies buving significant influence

Powwer Grid Corporative of o Limited
BIWN Limited
Negal Eleotricity Autlority

IL&VS Energy Developmesnt Comipauy Limited Gl 07-03-2025

1 Thee: natiore aned vodume of trmsnetions duging the yar with the above relatsd piirties were ps follows:
(% in lokhs)
IV & sipnificant
Particulurs inflmence
A Transuctions during the year
Expenses/income
IL&FS Encrgy Development Company Linited FY 2024-2025 FY 20232024
Dividkend Paid 46084 460,84
(Tavchucling taves)
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
Deputation Cost 1207 162,27
{Including Luses)
Divickend Paid 31531 3513
{Incloding taxes)
Business Suppont Service .54 {1,541
{Including tixes)
Operation wnd Muintenance Expenses 117,44 184,17
{Including txes)
SIVHN Limited
Dividend Paid 53 N5z
{Inclucking laxes)
Nepal Electricity Authority
Thividend Paic 12127 121,27
(Ineluding taxes)
B Outstanding balances®
Other current labilitles
Pewer Grid Corparation of India Limited 3115 M6
Other current finsneial asset
Advigrce to PGCIL 50400 40,00
Mut Amount in brackets represents previous venr
I Key munagerial personnel (KMP) and their remuneration during the year (T i lakhs)y
4 Employee! i
Name Designation  |poooion  |Period FY 2024-2025 | FY 2023-2024
Mr. Sathish Kumar J CED Deputation | 31-07-2023 1o 4]l date 126,07 74,801
Ms Divyve Sorayun Cs Lmplovee (0] -04-2023 {o il date: .06 505
Mr, Brundaban Dish CFO Emplayee U1-04-2023 1o 31032005 1471 14,66
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

(% in Inkhs)
Note 28 Earnings per equity share

Busic carmings por equily share have boen computed by dividing net profit afler lax by the weighted average number of cquity sharcs
outstanding for the vear,

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Unit 31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024

a Met profit for the vear Lakhs 201198 313007
b Weighted average of number of Mos. 4,85.09.512 4 8509512

cquity shares of Rs, 0 each
© Basic camings per share 4.35 4.39
d Weighted average number of Nos, 485,090,512 4,85,02512

shares ouistanding during the

period {or caleulation of diluted

earmings per sharg
¢ Diluted earmings/{loss) per share * I Rupces 435 4.39

*In case the effect of potential cquity shares is anri-dilutive. these have not been considered for caleulation of diluted carnings per share,

MNote 29 Employee Benelits

The Comparry participated in defined contribution scheme. no asser hag been separately finded for the benelits. For contribution selieme.,
the amount charged 1o the profit and logs is the 1ol contribution pavable in the year.

&. Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes contribution towards provident find 1o a defined contribution retrirement benefil plan for qualifving employess, The
Company's contribution to the employecs providem fund is deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner. Under the scheme,
the compony is required to contribule o specified perceriage of payroll cost o the retircment benefit scheme 1o fund the beaefits,

The Company recognised Rs,3,39 lakhs (PY Rs.3.37 Inkhs) for provident fund contribution i the Slatemient of profil and Joss secount.
The Contribution payahle to the plan by the Company is at the rale specified in the rules to the scheme,

b. Actusrial assumptions for long- term compensaled abscnocy
Principal actuarial assumptions:

&N Particul. Year ended Year ended
o e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 Discaunt rate (p.a) 6. 88% 7.23%
2 Salory cscalation raic {p.a) 6.00%% 6.0
3 Adfrition rale 2.00% 2.008%
Note

1 The discount rale is based on the prevailing markes viclds of indian govermument securities as at the balince sheel date for the cstimaled
term of obligations,

2 The estimates of fulure increases congidered lakes inlo account the inflation. seniarily. promotion and other relevent fctors,



Note 30 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans md bormowings denominated in Indian rupees or forcign currencics. trade
payables and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilitics is w linance the Company s capital investments and
operations,

The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables. and cash and cash equivalents that arc generated from its
operlions,

The Campany’'s activitics expase it 1o the following financial risks, namely,

(A} Credil risk,

(B) Liguidity rigk,

{C) Market risk.

'I_'I;Jis nate presenls information regarding the company’s exposure, abjectives, policics and processes for measuring and managing these
risks,

The manngemenl. of financial risks by the Company is summarized below: -

{A)  Credit Rigk:

Credit risk is the risk that counterpany will nol meet ite obligations under a financial instrument or citstomer conteact. leading to a
[inancial less, The Company is exposed to crodit risk from ifs operading activitics on account of trade recoivables,

A defoult on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 3 vears of when they all dpe, This
definition of default is determined considering the business environment in which the Company operates and other macro-cconomic
factors.

Assets are writien-off when there is no rensonable expectation of recovery. such as a debror declaring bankruptey of f iling to engage in
o repayment plan with the Company, Where loans or receivables have been writien of rhe Company continues 10 engage in
enforcement activity 10 atlempr to recover the receivable due. Where such rocoverics are made, these are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

(1) Trade Recoivablog

Therg are rade reccivables represents Unbilied Revenue of T 376,95 lakhs as a0 3 March, 2025 and of T 359,43 lakhs a1 31 Margh,
2024,

(i} Other Financial Asgets {excluding trade receivables )
** Cash pnd cash cquivalents

The Company held cash and cesh cquivalents of 23022.40 Lakh (Previous Year 22894.55 Lakl). The cash and cash cquivalents are
held with public sector banks end high tated private sestor banks and do not have any significant credit risk.

** Deposits with banks and financinl Ingtitutiony
The Company held deposits with banks and fnancial institutions of #3001 47 Lakh (Previous Year T2874.3% Lakh), Term deposits are
placed with public sector banks and have nogligible credit risk,

(iil) Exposure to credit risk

(% in lakhs)
Particulirs 31 March 2025 31 Murch 26024
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured
using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
Other non-current financial assels - -
Cagh nnd cash equivalents 3.022.40 2.894.55
Deposits with banks and financial imstitutions 7.99 7.99
Other current financial asscls 50,00 50,00
Total 3000,39 2.952.54




{iv)
(@)

ib)

(B)

Provision for expected credit losses

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The Company has asseis where the counler- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations: and where the risk of defiuli is Very
low. At initial recognition, financial assels (excluding trade receivables ) are considered as having nepligible credit risk and the risk has
not mereased from initinl recogrition, Therefore, no loss allowsnce for impairment has been recognised.

Financial asscis for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected crodit losses

The Company has customers most of whom are state Bovernment utilities with capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of
default is neghigible. Further, management belicves that the unitiipaired amounls that are 30 days past due date are still collectible in
full. based on the payment security mechanism in place and historical payviment behaviour,

Considering the above factors and the prevalent regulations, the trade receivables continue (o have a negligible credit risk on initial
recoguition and thereafler on each reporting date,

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilitics to meet obligations when duc. The Company has entered into Infer-Corporate Loan
Agreement for Funding of its abligations.

‘The Company depends on both inteenal and extcrnal sources of liquidily ta provide working capital and to fund capital expenditure,

Miturities of Bonancial liabilities
The table below anslyses the Company’s financial liabilitics into relevant malurity groupings based on their centrastual maturilics lor
all non-derivalive fnanclal habilitics,

The amount disclosed in the table is the contraciual undiscounted cash Nows.

Liguidity risk manapement

The respensibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Corporate Finance department which functions under the guidance of
Board of Dircotors, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilitics and reserve borrowing
facilities. by continuously momtoring forocast and actual cash Nows,

Liabilities

The follewing table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative linancial Kabilivies with agreed
repayment periods, The table has been drawn up based on undiscounted cagh fAows of financial liabilitGes baged on carlier date on which
the Compainy can be required 1o pay,

Carrying
Particulaes 0-1 year | 1-8 years Muore than| Contractual amount at
5 years amuount amortised
sl
As at 31 March 2025 | In Lakhs| In Lakhs| In Lukhs In Lakhs|  In Lakhs
Borrowings L205.62 | G028.10 [ 19.137.73 7,836.53
Other financial 63,146 - =

Towal] 126878 | 602810 G251 19,137.73 THI6SE3

As it 31 March 2024
Borrowings 120562 | 602810 2.363.08 1913773 050677

Other financial 208,50 - - = =

Total] 141402 | 6028.10] 236305 |  19.037.73 | 959677




(C}  MARKET RISK

Market rigk is the risk that the Tinir value of fsture cash fows o a financial instrument will Muctate bocauss of ehanges in market
prices. Markel risk comprises twe Ivpes of risk;

(i) Currency risk
(i} Intcrest rate risk

(i) Currency risk

As on Reporting date the Company docs not have iy EXpOSUrE Lo currency risk in respect of fareign currency denominated loans and
bomrowings and procurement of goods and services whose purchase consideration foreign CIHTERCY,

(i) Interest rate risk

The company has taken borrowings from Parem Company on cost (o cost basis, The Company is exposed 1o interost rate risk hocause
the cash flows associated with Doating eate borrowings. The varions sorees of loans being extonded 1o the caiipany by parcnt company
are Fixed interest and floating interest mie which get reset penodically. The Company manages the interest rate risks by maintaining a
debt pertfolio of fixed and Neating rate barrowings. The Company's interess rie risk is not considered significant; honee sensitivity
analysis for the risk is not disclosed.

Note 31 Additional Regulatory information as per schedube 1 of Companies Act 2013,

A Mo proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act. 1988 (as amended) and rules made thereunder as at the end of the financial vear,

The Company is nat sanctoned any working capital limit secured against current gssets by amy Finance lnstitutions,
The company was not declared as a wilfl defaulier by any bank or financial Institution or ather lender during the financial vear

Thee Company docs nat have any transactions, balances or relationship with Struck off companics,
The Company does not have any Charges on the Assels of the Company,

The company bas complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companics
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 during the financial year,

The company has not received/advanced or Ioancd or hivested Fumds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) through Intermediaries during the financial vear,

- oomE N

The Company does not have any transaction that wag nat recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as
H incomnc during the year in the 1ay assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961,

I The Company kas not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virlual Curroncy during the financial year.
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